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APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY 
FOR INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE 

BUYERS UNITED INC. 

Pursuant to SDCL 49-3 1-3 and in accordance with the requirements set forth in Chapter 
20:10:24:02 of the South Dakota Adwinistrative Rules, Buyers United Inc. ("Company") 
hereby submits the following application for authority. 

The name address and telephone number of the Company is: 

Buyers United Inc. 
14870 South Pony Express Road 
Bluffdale, Utah 84065 
800-363-5029 

The names under which the Company will provide services: 

Buyers United Inc. 
Buyersonline 
United Carrier Networks 

The Company is incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware and has 
received authority fiom the South Dakota Secretary of State to transact business 
as a foreign corporation within the State of South Dakota. Attached hereto as 
Exhibit A is a copy of the Company's certificate of authority to transact business 
in South Dakota. 

The Company's principal place of business is 14870 South Pony Express Road 
Bluffdale, Utah 84065. The Company's registered agent in South Dakota is 
National Registered Agents, Inc. and is located at 300 South Phillips Avenue, 
Suite 300 Sioux Falls, South Dakota 57102. 

No corporation, association, partnership, cooperative, or individual holds a 20% 
or greater ownership or management interest in the Company. 

The Company resells intrastate long distance and provides, on a limited capacity, 
Internet services. 

Company contracts with Qwest, World Com MCI, Global Crossing, Williams, 
and Broadwing for the purchase of wholesale long distance. 

The Company will offer its service throughout the entire State of South Dakota. 

The Company's Financial Statements are attached hereto as Exhibit B. The 
Company's Annul Report to its Shareholders is attached hereto as Exhibit C. 
The Company's proposed Intrastate Tariff is attached hereto as Exhibit D. 



10. Inquiries regarding complaints and regulatory matters should be addressed to: 

Kirnrn Partridge 
14870 South Pony Express Road 
Bluffdale, Utah 84065 
800 363-6177 
kimm.pa~tridge@,buyoin~c.co~n 

1 1. Billing and Customer Service matter: 

Bills are sent to customers, monthly, with payment terms of net 30 days. A 
sample bill is attached hereto as Exhibit E. 

The Company maintains a customer service department 24 hours a day, seven 
days a week. All customer service representatives are trained to handle customer 
questions and concerns. In addition, technical experts are available to assist in 
handling technical matters. 

The Company's billing manager contact is: 

Linda Hufthaan 
14870 South Pony Express Road 
Bluffdale, Utah 84065 
866-800-0007 
Linda.Huffn1an@,bu~a31-~0111inecoln 

The Company's customer service manager contact is: 

Jessica Stevens 
14870 South Pony Express Road 
Bluffdale, Utah 84065 
800-363-5029 
jessica.stevens(~buyerso~~iini:.con~ - 

The Company has been certified in all states except Alaska and Hawaii. The 
Company has never been denied authority in any jurisdiction, with the exception 
of South Dakota on August 7,2002 (Order TC02-013). The Company is in good 
standing in all states except the following: Arkansas, Illinois, Louisiana, 
Minnesota, Tennessee, and Wisconsin. The Company's authority was revoked in 
the aforementioned states because of failure to file required annual reports andlor 
pay the minimum franchise taxes. Within the past two years, the Company has 
undergone extensive managerial and personnel restructuring. These changes have 
proved beneficial in reorganizing the Company and its ability to provide and 
maintain services with customers, as well as relations with regulatory governing 
bodies. 



13. The Company markets its service through the following basic methods: 

Direct Response Marketing 

The Company has successfully produced and tested an Infomercial, hosted by 
rratiom! celebrities t h ~ t  focus on the savings opportmities available through the 
Company. This targets residential customers. In order for the television viewer 
to take advantage of the attractive savings opportunities and rebate programs 
described in the Infomercials, they must activate a monthly service such as long 
distance or Internet access with the Company. No other membership fees are 
required. 

Referral Rebate Program 

Members can cczero-out" many of their monthly bills by participating in the 
Company's "Referral Rebate Program." Members who refer other residential or 
business customers to the Company will earn 10% of the monthly service revenue 
attributable to the referred member. This is a single-level commission structure. 

Independent Agent Program 

Independent Telecommunication Agents are commissioned salespeople who 
represent a client base that is seeking to find the best telecommunications value 
and service available in the market. The Company has relationships with 
approximately 2,400 agents. 

Online Marketing 

The Company markets via the Internet by purchasing outright or entering into 
contracts with companies that control large lists of Internet users that have 
requested notification of product and savings opportunities similar to those 
offered by the Company. Once the Company has access to the Internet lists, it 
offers incentives through its own web site, consisting of £ree products provided by 
affiliated retailers. 

Attached as Exhibit F is a "Welcome Kit" that the Company sends to each new 
member. 

14. The Company purchases long distance at a wholesale rate fiom national carriers. 
The Company reserves 30% above the wholesale rate to pay for customer service, 
bad debt, fiaud, billing, and other services intended to benefit The Company's 
customers. 

15. The Company's Federal tax identification number is: 87-0528557. 



16. Customer complaints filed against the Company regarding the unauthorized 
switching of a customer's telecommunications provider and the act of charging 
customers for services that have not been ordered: 

Complaint to State of Texas by a customer who claimed that her services were 
switched without authorization. The Company never actually switched her 
services. Upon showing proof of this to the Texas Public Utility Commission, 
the matter was resolved and dismissed. 

Complaint to the New York State Public Service Commission by a customer 
claiming that service was switched without authorization. The Company 
responded that customer's service was switched due to a service error. All 
charges were reversed and the customer's claim was dismissed. 

Complaint to the State of North Carolina Department of Justice by a customer 
claiming that service was switched without authorization. The Company 
received documentation (authorization) fiom one of its agents, 
"Justpennies.com," directing the Company to switch service. Complaint was 
dismissed. 

17. At this time, the Company does not have a request for waiver of any rules. 

18. The Company has been in business over five years with revenues that increased 
120% during the year 2001. In addition, the Company has the financial and 
managerial expertise to offer high quality, reliable service to South Dakota 
consumers. The Company takes pride in providing consumers with inexpensive, 
cost effective communications services. The Company will provide other 
information as required by the Commission. 

Buyers United Inc. hereby submits the aforementioned information, including all 

accompanying Exhibits as its Application for Certificate of Authority for Interexchange 

Service. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Dated: September 17,20002 



Exhibit A 

Certificate of Authority to transact business in South Dakota 



OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

Certificate of Authority 
ORGANIZATIONAL ID #: FB026551 

I, JOYCE HAZELTINE, Secretary of State of the State of South Dakota, 
hereby certify that the Application for a Certificate of Authority of BUYERS 
UNITED INC. (DE) to transact business in this state duly signed and verified 
pursuant to the provisions of the South Dakota Corporation Acts, have been 
received in this office and are found to conform to law. 

ACCORDINGLY and by virtue of the authority vested in me by law, I hereby 
issue this Certificate of Authority and attach hereto a duplicate of the application 
to transact business in this state. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I 
have hereunto set my hand and 
affixed the Great Seal of the State of 
South Dakota, at Pierre, the Capital, 
this August 22,2002. 

Joyce Hazeltine 
Secretary of State 



Exhibit B 

Financial Statements 



U.S. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM 10-QSB 

[ X ] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the quarterly period ended June 30,2002 

[ ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the transition period from to 

Commission File No. 0-26917 

BUYERS UNITED, INC. 
(Exact name of small business issuer as specified in its charter) 

Delaware 
(State or other jurisdiction of 

87-0528557 
(IRS Employer Identification No.) 

incorporation or organization) 

14870 Ponv Express Road, Bluffdale, Utah 84065 
(Address of principal executive offices) 

(801) 320-3300 
(Issuer's telephone number) 

(Former name, address and fiscal year, if changed since last report) 

Check whether the issuer (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange 
Act during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the issuer was required to file such 
reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes [XI No [ ] 

APPLICABLE ONLY TO ISSUERS INVOLVED IN BANKRUPTCY PROCEEDINGS DURING THE 
PRECEDING FIVE YEARS: 

Check whether the registrant has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Sections 12, 13, or 
15(d) of the Exchange Act subsequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confmed by a court. 
Yes[ I No [ I 

APPLICABLE ONLY TO CORPORATE ISSUERS: 
State the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer's classes of common equity: 5,730,161 of 
common stock as of July 3 1,2002. 

Transitional Small Business Format: Yes [ ] No [ X ] 



FORM 10-QSB 
BUYERS UNITED, INC. 

INDEX 

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Item 1. Financial Statements 

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of 
June 30,2002 (unaudited) and December 31,2001 

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the 
Three Months Ended June 30,2002 and 2001 (unaudited) 

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the 
Six Months Ended June 30,2002 and 2001 (unaudited) 

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the 
Six Months Ended June 30,2002 and 2001 (unaudited) 

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 
And Results of Operations 

PART 11. OTHER INFORMATION 

Item 1. Legal Proceedings 

Item 2. Changes in Securities and Use of Proceeds 

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K 

Signatures 



BUYERS UNITED, INC. 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(rinaridited) 
June 30, December 31, 

2001 
ASSETS 

Current assets: 
Cash 
Restricted cash 
Accounts receivable, net 
Other current assets 

Total current assets 

Property and equipment, net 
Debt issuance cost, net 
Other assets, net 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT 
Current liabilities: 

Checks drawn in excess of available cash balances 
Line of credit 
Current portion of long-term debt 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Accrued commissions and rebates 
Accrued dividends payable on preferred stock 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term liabilities: 
Long-term debt, net of current portion 

Total liabilities 

Stockholders' deficit: 
Preferred stock 
Common stock 
Additional paid-in capital 
Warrants and options outstanding 
Deferred consulting fees 
Accumulated deficit 

Total stockholders' deficit 

Total liabilities and stockholders' deficit 

See accompanying notes 
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BUYERS UNITED, INC. 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

Three Months Ended June 30, 
2002 - 2001 

Revenues: 
Telecommunications services 
Other 

Total revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Costs of revenues 
General and administrative 
Selling and promotion 

Total operating expenses 

Income (loss) from operations 

Other income (expense): 
Interest income 
Interest expense 

Total other expense, net 

Net income (loss) 

8% dividends on Series A and B preferred stock 

Net loss applicable to common stockholders 

Net loss per common share: 
Basic and diluted 

Weighted average common shares outstanding: 
Basic and diluted 

See accompanying notes 

4 



BUYERS UNITED, INC. 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

(unaudited) 
Six Months Ended June 30, 

2002 
Revenues: 

Telecommunications services 
Other 

Total revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Costs of revenues 
General and administrative 
Selling and promotion 

Total operating expenses 

Income (loss) from operations 

Other income (expense): 
Interest income 
Interest expense 

Total other expense, net 

Net income (loss) 

Preferred stock dividends: 
8% dividends on Series A and B preferred stock 
Beneficial conversion feature related to Series B preferred stock 

Total preferred stock dividends 

Net loss applicable to common stockholders 

Net loss per common share: 
Basic and diluted 

Weighted average common shares outstanding: 
Basic and diluted 

See accompanying notes 

5 



BUYERS UNITED, INC. 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used in 

operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Interest expense resulting from issuing stock and warrants with notes 
Amortization of discount on notes payable 
Amortization of note financing costs 
Amortization of deferred consulting fees 
Services rendered in exchange for shares of common stock 
Expense related to the grant of options to purchase common shares 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Restricted cash 
Accounts receivable 
Other assets 
Checks in excess of available cash balances 
Accounts payable 
Accrued commissions and rebates 
Accrued liabilities 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Decrease (increase) in other assets 
Purchases of property and equipment 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Net borrowings under line of credit 
Borrowings under notes payable, net of debt issuance costs 
Principal payments on notes payable 
Principal payments on capital lease obligations 
Issuance of preferred/common shares for cash, net of offering costs 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Net increase in cash 
Cash at the beginning of the period 

Cash at the end of the period 

(unaudited) 
Six Months Ended June 30, 

2002 @oJ 

See accompanying notes 

6 



BUYERS UNITED, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - (Continued) 

(wzaudited) 
Six Months Ended June 30, 

2002 - - 2001 

Supplemental cash flow information: 
Cash paid for interest 

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing activities: 
Issuance of common shares in payment of preferred stock dividend 
Issuance of common shares in payment of deferred services 
Issuance of common shares in payment of deferred financing costs 
Issuance of warrants with promissory notes 
Beneficial conversion dividend on Series B preferred shares 
Accrual of dividend payable on preferred stock 



BUYERS UNITED, LNC. 
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30,2002 
(unaudited) 

1. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of Buyers United, Inc. ("the 
Company" or "Buyers United") have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-QSB of Regulation S-B. Accordingly, they 
do not include all the information and footnotes necessary for a comprehensive presentation of financial position 
and results of operations. 

It is management's opinion, however, that all material adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) have 
been made which are necessary for a fair financial statement presentation. The results for the interim period are 
not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the year. 

For further information, refer to the consolidated financial statements and footnotes included in the Company's 
annual report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 3 1,2001. 

2. Long-term Debt 

In January 2002, the Company issued a $100,000 unsecured note payable to the Chairman of the Board which 
bears interest at 12% with both principal and interest due July 5,2003. 

Also in January 2002 the Company issued $79,998 in unsecured notes payable to three officers of the Company 
that bear interest at 12% which is payable monthly with the principal due July 5,2003. 

In April and May of 2002 the Company also issued $2,265,000 in unsecured promissory notes bearing interest at 
10% to 12%, payable monthly. Principal payments are due monthly based on 38% to 40% of billings collected 
from specifically identified customers. These percentages will increase if the notes are not fully repaid within a 
specified period. After the notes' principal balance is paid in full, the Company will continue to remit a 
percentage of the billings collected from these customers but the percentage will be reduced to 18% to 20%. 
These payments will continue as long as the customers continue purchasing long distance services from the 
Company. In addition, each note holder received a two-year warrant to purchase shares of common stock at an 
exercise price of $2.50 per share. The amount of warrants issued equaled 10% of the note proceeds. 

3. Capital Transactions 

During the last half of 2001, preferred stock dividends amounted to $378,3 16, consisting of $150,942 on 
outstanding shares of Series A 8% cumulative convertible preferred stock, and $227,374 on outstanding shares of 
Series B 8% cumulative convertible preferred stock. These dividends were paid through the issuance of 374,534 
shares of common stock to the holders of the preferred stock in February 2002. 

On January 15,2002, the Company issued 7,998 shares to three officers in consideration of notes payable in the 
amount of $79,998. The value of the shares was $8,798. 

On January 18,2001, the Company issued 10,000 shares to Theodore Stern, the Company's CEO and Chairman 
of the Board of Directors, in consideration of a note payable in the amount of $100,000. The value of the shares 
was $10,000. 

On February 15,2002, the Company issued 25,000 shares to Mr. Stern in consideration of him granting a 
$250,000 guaranty to MCI WorldCom, Inc. on behalf of Buyers United in connection with the Company entering 
in to a resale contract. The value of the shares was $30,750. 



BUYERS UNITED, INC. 
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

June 30,2002 
(uizn~ditecl) 

3. Capital Transactions - (continued) 

In May 2002 the Board of Directors approved a plan to modify the exercise price on certain warrants from $2.50 
to $2.00 per share, and to extend the expiration date of certain warrants from December 31,2002 to December 31, 
2004. As of mid-August, the Company was in the process of obtaining the required approvals from the warrant 
holders and expects the modifications to be completed by the end of August. 

4. Major suppliers 

Approximately, 87% and 62% of the Company's cost of revenue for the six months ended June 30,2002 and 
2001, respectively, was generated from two telecommunications providers. As of June 30,2002 one of these 
providers had filed for bankruptcy protection under Chapter 11, and the other provider is currently being 
scrutinized by the Securities and Exchange Commission over certain accounting matters. Although the Company 
has not experienced a disruption of service and feels it could replace these sources with other wholesale 
telecommunications providers, the effect on the Company's operations of potentially losing both of these service 
providers can not be determined. 

5. Subsequent events 

During the first part of August 2002, the Company entered into loan agreements with several individuals 
aggregating $1,700,000. Under the terms of the agreements, the proceeds can be used for working capital or to 
partake in a direct response advertising campaign with an unrelated comparison shopping service to solicit new 
customers. The loans have a stated interest rate of lo%, and are to be repaid using a portion of collected revenues 
from specifically-designated new customers. After all principal and interest is repaid, the note holder will retain a 
24% residual for as long as the specific customers remain active Buyers United customers. Unlike similar loan 
arrangements entered into earlier in the year, no warrants were issued in connection with these loans. 

6. Going concern 

Up through the end of 2001, the Company had experienced recurring losses from operations. As of June 30, 
2002, the Company had a working capital deficit of $4.3 million and an accumulated deficit of $26 million. 
Although the Company achieved profitability during the first two quarters of 2002, and management believes the 
Company will continue to be profitable during the remainder of 2002, the foregoing matters raise substantial 
doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements do not include any 
adjustments relating to the recoverabiIity and classification of asset carrying amounts or the amount and 
classification of liabilities that might result should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern. 



Item 2. MANAGEMENTS'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION 
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Overview 

Buyers United is engaged in the business of selling to consumers and small businesses long distance and 
Internet access services. Our business model is to offer these services at what we believe to be 
competitive prices and provide additional value to the customer through service maintenance and billing, 
product rebates, and other promotions. Buyers United uses the purchasing power of its customer base to 
obtain favorable rates for long distance and Internet access service and obtain rebates on products and 
services we offer to our customers as an added benefit for purchasing long distance or Internet access 
service through us. Buyers United's goal is to continue to expand and develop as a national reseller of 
our services. Our strategy for achieving this goal is to focus on expanding service and product offerings, 
continue our customer rebate program, continue development of our agent sales program, and pursue 
Internet marketing opportunities to obtain new customers. 

Buyers United provides services that it believes are perceived by consumers and businesses as essential or 
are compatible with their normal annual expenditures. Since its inception in January 1996, Buyers United 
has focused on selling long distance service. This focus has enabled Buyers United to build the size of its 
customer base. 

Buyers United currently has over 83,000 customers. Its target market includes networking professionals, 
small businesses, and middle-class families with an annual household income between $30,000 and 
$100,000, as these are the most likely to respond actively to the cost savings opportunity offered by 
Buyers United. Customers reside mostly in high population centers and they tend to spend more than the 
average on long distance services. Buyers United believes that approximately one-third of the present 
customers consist of small businesses and entrepreneurs who operate home-based businesses. 

Results of Operations 

Total revenues from telecommunications and other services increased 94% to $6.78 million for the three 
months ended June 30,2002 as compared to $3.49 million for the same period in 2001. Year-to-date, 
revenues increased 80% as compared to the first half of 2001. The increase in revenue is due to an 
increase in the number of customers we serve resulting from our ongoing promotional efforts, primarily 
involving independent agents and referrals from an online shopping comparison service. 

Costs of revenues for the three-month period ended June 30,2002 were $3.68 million, a 46% increase as 
compared to $2.52 million incurred during the comparable three-month period for the prior year. For the 
six-month periods, costs of revenue increased 37%. Such costs as a percentage of revenue for the three 
and six-month periods ended June 30,2002 were 54% and 53%, respectively, as compared to 72% and 
70% during 2001. The higher gross margins is a result of obtaining better costs from our long distance 
carriers, along with an increase in sales to residential customers which earn higher gross margins. 

Total operating expenses other than costs of revenues were 3% higher during the quarter ended June 30, 
2002 as compared to the same period of 2001, and were 4% lower during the six-month period as 
compared to the previous year. These changes are a result of the following factors: 

+ General and administrative costs in 2002's second quarter increased 3% to $1.8 1 million 
compared to $1.76 million in 2001. For the six months ended June 30,2002, expenses were 
lower by 11% as compared to the previous year. Decreases in expenses during 2002 as compared 
to 2001 resulted from lower compensation costs incurred after we reduced employee levels in 



2001. In addition, certain occupancy and maintenance costs were lower stemming from the 
cancellation of an equipment lease during the third quarter of 2001. These decreases were offset 
by increases during 2002 in billing costs and allowances for uncollectible accounts directly 
proportional to the increase in revenues. 

+ Selling and promotion expenses increased 4% to $856,276 during the second quarter of 2002 
from $827,157 in 2001. Expenses for the six-month period ended June 30,2002 rose 11% as 
compared to the same period of 2001. The increases resulted primarily from the proportionate 
higher commission amounts paid on higher revenue. Included in selling and promotion expenses 
for the first half of 2001 was $150,000 in celebrity contract renewal costs in connection with an 
infomercial marketing tool originally intended to air later in 2001. The infomercial was not used 
and we did not incur any contract renewal costs in the first half of 2002. Consequently, 
commissions on revenue represent a substantially higher proportion of selling and promotion 
expense in the first six months of 2002 as compared to 2001. 

Interest income was $5,998 for the quarter ended June 30,2002, and was $6,802 for the six months then 
ended. This compares to $3,873 and $9,124, respectively, earned during the comparable periods of 2001. 
The differences resulted from varying cash balances on hand during 2002 as compared to the 
corresponding periods in 200 1. 

Interest expense for the three and six-month periods ended June 30,2002 was $385,480 and $688,724, 
respectively, compared to $184,137 and $371,511 for the comparative periods of 2001. The higher 
amounts were the result of higher debt balances outstanding in 2002 as compared to the previous year. 

As a result of the above factors we earned overall net income before preferred stock dividends of $5 1,504 
during the quarter ended June 30,2002, as compared to a net loss of $1.80 million for the same period 
during 2001. For the first half of 2002 we earned income of $77,532, as compared to a net loss of $3.31 
million incurred during the first half of 2001. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Buyers United's current ratio as of June 30,2002 increased slightly to 0.57: 1 from 0.48: 1 at the end of 
2001. The components of current assets and current liabilities that changed significantly since the end of 
2001 were accounts receivable, accrued commissions and rebates, other current assets, and the current 
portion of long-term debt. 

Accounts receivable and accrued commission and rebates increased as a result of higher revenue amounts 
during 2002 as compared to 2001. Other current assets increased 278% since the end of December 2001, 
due primarily to higher capitalized amounts associated with our direct financing campaign that are 
expected to be recovered during the next twelve months. 

The current portion of long-term debt rose 255%, partly because the balance of a $1.05 million 
promissory note, due February 28,2003, was reclassified from a long-term to a current liability. In 
addition, although the majority of new promissory notes issued during 2002 have no stated maturity date, 
management believes we will repay the loans over a period of approximately twelve months. 
Accordingly, the entire amount of these loans have also been included in current liabilities. 

As of June 30,2002, we had a $1.05 million note payable to an individual bearing interest at 18%, 
payable monthly. The note is due February 28,2003 and provides that 50,000 shares of common stock 
will be issued to the note holder at maturity. Should the note be prepaid, we are required to issue 100,000 



shares to the note holder. The note provides a conversion feature whereby the holder may convert the 
note into common stock at $2.50 per share. 

During October and November of 2001, we raised $825,000 via promissory notes to fund our 
participation in an unrelated comparison shopping service and to fund working capital needs. The notes 
are unsecured and bear interest at 12%, payable monthly. Principal is also payable monthly, based on 
20% of billings collected during each monthly billing period from specifically designated existing 
customers or from any new customers that subscribed via the on-line shopping service in which the 
shopping services fee was paid from the proceeds. After the notes are repaid, we will continue to remit a 
percentage of the billings collected from these customers, but the percentage will be reduced to 10%. 
These payments will continue as long as the specific customers continue purchasing long distance 
services from Buyers United. 

During the first half of 2002, Buyers United raised $2,265,000 through the sale of promissory notes to 
continue in the comparison shopping service and to fund working capital needs. These notes bear interest 
at 10% to 12%, and interest and principal payments are due monthly. Similar to the notes issued during 
2001, principal is repaid out of collected billings from new customers generated through the online 
shopping service. However, only half the note proceeds are to be used for this service, the rest being 
allocated for working capital purposes, as needed. With respect to these 2002 notes, 38% to 40% of the 
new customer billings are to be reserved for principal repayment, depending on the particular note 
agreement. After the notes are repaid, we will continue to remit a percentage of the billings collected 
from these customers, but the percentage will be reduced to 18% to 20%. These payments will continue 
as long as the specific customers continue purchasing long distance services from Buyers United. 

In August 2002, we sold an additional $1,700,000 in promissory notes bearing interest at the rate of 10% 
per annum that will be repaid out of a portion of billings to new customers obtained via the shopping 
service, similar to the terms of the promissory notes describe above. 

At June 30,2002, Buyers United had several unsecured promissory notes payable to Theodore Stem, an 
officer and director, totaling $2,665,000. All but one of the notes (for $400,000) bear interest at a rate of 
12%, with interest payable upon maturity. The $400,000 note, along with the noteholder's personal 
guaranty, originated in connection with securing more favorable rates with certain of our 
telecommunication providers. Accordingly, based on savings in terms of these costs, interest on this note 
is calcuIated based on the monthly vendor billings incurred by Buyers United, not to exceed $15,000 per 
month, payable monthly. All the notes mature on July 5,2003. 

During the first quarter of 2002, we issued $79,998 in unsecured promissory notes payable to Paul 
Jarman, G. Douglas Smith, and Kenneth D. Krogue, all executive officers. The notes mature in July 2003 
and bear interest at 12%, payable monthly. 

Buyers United has a line of credit agreement with RFC Capital Corporation. The facility allows us to 
finance up to $2.5 million based on our eligible accounts receivable, and allows us to borrow against 
unbilled receivables as well as finance regular monthly billings. The facility bears interest at a rate of 
prime plus 6% and expires in June 2004. At June 30,2002, we had financed the maximum amount 
available based on eligible accounts receivable at that time, which amounted to $8 11,072. This 
agreement also requires us to maintain a restricted cash account for the collection of our receivables. As 
of June 30,2002 we had $430,932 of restricted cash primarily relating to the RFC Capital agreement. 

Up through the end of 2001, we had experienced recurring losses from operations. As of June 30,2002, 
we had a working capital deficit of $4.3 million and an accumulated deficit of $26 million. Although we 
achieved profitability during the first two quarters of 2002, the foregoing matters raise substantial doubt 



about our ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements do not include any adjustments 
relating to the recoverability and classification of asset carrying amounts or the amount and classification 
of liabilities that might result should we be unable to continue as a going concern. We are currently 
experiencing significant revenue growth and have seen the results of several fixed-cost reduction 
initiatives begun in 2001. While there can be no assurance that such will be the case, management 
believes that the trend of revenue increases will continue, and that we will continue to be profitable during 
the remainder of 2002. 

Forward-Looking Statements 

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1985 provides a safe harbor for forward-looking 
statements made by Buyers United, except where such statements are made in connection with an initial 
public offering. All statements, other than statements of historical fact, which address activities, actions, 
goals, prospects, or new developments that we expect or anticipate will or may occur in the future, 
including such things as expansion and growth of our operations and other such matters are forward- 
looking statements. Any one or a combination of factors could materially affect our operations and 
financial condition. These factors include competitive pressures, success or failure of marketing 
programs, changes in pricing and availability of services and products offered to members, legal and 
regulatory initiatives affecting member marketing and rebate programs or long distance service, and 
conditions in the capital markets. Forward-looking statements made by us are based on knowledge of our 
business and the environment in which we operate as of the date of this report. Because of the factors 
listed above, as well as other factors beyond its control, actual results may differ from those in the 
forward-looking statements. 

PART 11. OTHER INFORMATION 

Item 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

On June 14,2001, a lawsuit was filed against Buyers United by Profitec, Inc., in New Haven, 
Connecticut. Profitec asserts that it agreed to perform certain billing services in 1999 for our 
telecommunication customers and that we agreed to pay Profitec for such services. Profitec further 
claims that we breached the contract by terminating the contract and failing to pay fees allocable under a 
"liquidated damage" provision for early termination. Profitec claims damages in excess of $140,000, 
based upon the contract's liquidated damage provisions. Buyers United has retained counsel to defend 
this action. Our defenses include that Profitec breached the contract with respect to manner and time of 
performance and failed to cure these breaches after notice. We filed a general denial answer and asserted 
affirmative defenses, including breach of contract, failure of consideration, and other issues. We also 
filed a counter claim seeking damages for Profitec's breach of the contract. In November 2001, Profitec 
answered and denied the counter-claim but has never claimed the matter to any trial list, nor have they 
ever sought discovery. Management believes that Profitec's claims are without merit, and intends to 
defend the action and pursue its claims against Profitec as it deems appropriate. 

We are a party to certain other legal proceedings that we consider incidental to our business activities. It 
is the opinion of management, after discussion with legal counsel, that the ultimate disposition of these 
other matters will not have a material impact on our financial position, liquidity, or results of operations. 



Item 2. CHANGES IN SECURITES AND USE OF PROCEEDS 

During the first half of 2002, Buyers United raised $2,265,000 through the sale of promissory notes to 
continue in the comparison shopping service and to fund working capital needs. These notes bear interest 
at 10% to 12%, and interest and principal payments are due monthly. Similar to the notes issued during 
2001, principal is repaid out of collected billings from new customers generated through the online 
shopping service. Half the note proceeds are to be used for this service, the rest being allocated for 
working capital purposes, as needed. With respect to these 2002 notes, 38% to 40% of the new customer 
billings are to be reserved for principal repayment, depending on the particular note agreement. After the 
notes are repaid, we will continue to remit a percentage of the billings collected from these customers, but 
the percentage will be reduced to 18% to 20%. These payments will continue as long as the specific 
customers continue purchasing long distance services from Buyers United. In addition, each note holder 
received a two-year warrant to purchase shares of common stock at an exercise price of $2.50 per share. 
The amount of warrants issued equaled 10% of the note proceeds, or a total of 226,500 issued to the note 
holders. vFinance Investments, Inc. acted as agent for us in the placement of the notes and was paid 
commissions equaling 5% of the loan proceeds. vFinance also received two-year warrants to purchase 
shares of common stock in number equal to 3% of the loan proceeds. The warrants have an exercise price 
of $2.50 per share. 

All of the aforementioned securities were issued in reliance on the exemption from registration provided 
by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 or Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated thereunder. 
Based on information provided by the investors, we believe each investor was an accredited investor 
within the meaning of Rule 501 of Regulation D. 

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF PVZATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 

At the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on June 19,2002, the stockholders voted on the following 
matters: 

(I) The election of Theodore Stern, Gary Smith, Edward Dallin Bagley, and Steve Barnett as 
directors of Buyers United to serve for a term of one year and until their successors are 
duly elected and qualified; and 

(2) Ratification of the appointment of Crowe, Chizek and Company LLP as independent 
auditors of Buyers United for 2002. 

Each of the foregoing matters was approved or ratified by the stockholders. The number of votes 
cast on the foregoing matters is as follows: 

For Against Abstain 

Election of Directors: 
Theodore Stem 
Gary Smith 
Edward Dallin Bagley 
Steve Bamett 

Appointment of Crowe, Chizek and Company LLP 2,943,802 5,219 115 



Item 6. EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K 

Reports on Form 8-K: 

None. 

Exhibits: 

Exhibit 99.1 Certification required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

SIGNATURES 

In accordance with the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf 
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 

BUYERS UNITED, INC. 

Date: August 13,2002 

Date: August 13,2002 

By: I s /  G. Douglas Smith, Vice President 

By: I s /  Paul Jarman, Treasurer 



Exhibit 99.1 

Certification Pursuant to 
Sections 302 and 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Buyers United, Inc. ("Company") on Form 10-QSB for the 
quarter ended June 30,2002 ("Report"), each of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of 
the Company whose names appear below certifies pursuant to 5302 and $906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002, for himself that, to the best of his knowledge: 

1. The Report has been read and reviewed by the undersigned; 

2. The Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
necessary in order to makes the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such 
statements were made, not misleading; and 

3. The financial statements, and other such financial information included in the Report, fairly present 
the financial condition and results of operations of the Company as of and for the period ended 
June 30,2002. 

Each of said officers further affirms that: 

1. The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining a system of internal accounting controls, subject to the approval and supervision of the 
Audit Committee and Board of Directors. The Company's system of internal accounting controls 
is designed to assure, among other items, that material information relating to the Company and its 
consolidated subsidiaries is made known on a timely basis to the Chief Executive Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer. 

2. He has evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's internal controls as of July 31,2002, and has 
concluded that such controls are operating, as of such date, in a manner reasonably required to 
enable management to receive all material information necessary to produce financial statements 
that present fairly the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Company for 
the respective periods presented in its periodic reports filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. He has not identified as of July 3 1, 2002, any significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses in the design or operation of the Company's internal controls to disclose to the 
Company's Audit Committee or independent auditors. 

3. He has not identified any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other 
employees who have a significant role in the Company's system of internal controls to disclose to 
the Company's Audit Committee or independent auditors. 

4. There have been no significant changes in the Company's system of internal accounting controls or 
in other factors that could significantly affect the Company's system of accounting controls from 
July 3 1,2002, to the date the Report is filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

IS/ Theodore Stem IS/ Paul Jarman 
Theodore Stem, Chief Executive Officer Paul Jarman, Chief Financial Officer 
Dated: August 13, 2002 Dated: August 13, 2002 
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U N I T E D  C A R R I E R  N E T W O R K S  

May 15,2002 

Dear Fellow Shareholders: 

Last September, I reported to you on the status of Buyers United and the exciting things that had happened 
in the first eight months of 2001. In spite of the tragic events of September 11 and the adverse impact on our 
economy, the growth momentum has continued undiminished. As I mentioned in my last letter to you, the true 
strength of the company is the coIlective commitment of our shareholders and employees. 

Enclosed is a copy of our Annual Report, which describes the company's progress through the end of last 
year. In this letter I want to highlight the progress we have made since then. 

In my last letter I reported that we were completing successful testing of residential member direct-response 
advertising through LowerMyBills.com (LMB). LMB shows its members ways to save money by 
connecting them with service providers such as Buyers United. LMB studied our business plan and 
concluded that our long distance services, corporate infrastructure, and experience make us a good fit. We 
started slowly toward the end of last year and during the first quarter of this year assumed a leading 
position. By the end of April we have added over 30,000 new members through LMB. We have worked 
out the expected "kinks" and believe that we can, in the future, add in excess of 10,000 new members per 
month. Our LMB new member costs average about $30 per new member which we have been able to fund 
through a unique loan program with the help of our investment banlung firm, vFinance Investments. 

In June of this year we will have completed our first year with RFC Capital Corporation, the company that 
finances our accounts receivable. The line of credit, allowing us to borrow up to $2,500,000, has been 
renewed for another two years. 

We have initiated marketing a new proprietary software program that increases the productivity of call 
centers. There are thousands of call centers in the U.S. that could benefit from this unique product. We did 
not expect to roll out this product before July but have already received several contracts based on our 
initial presentations. 

* In February of this year, we signed Brad Miehl as our newest telecommunication agent. Brad has over 
1,200 subagents who market telecommunication services for him. Brad is a great addition to our 
Independent Telecommunication Agent family. 

* In March of this year, we rolled out a new division: United Carrier Networks ('UCN"). UCN was created 
to meet the specific needs of our many and diverse commercial customers. The advent of UCN is 
significant as it offers unique services to both small and large businesses. Our over 2,400 Independent 
Telecommunications Agents are marketing our services to businesses now through UCN. 

* With UCN f i d y  in place, we retained Buyersonline as a division to market our services to residential 
customers. 

S a l e s  1 - 8 8 8 - U C M - 5 5 1 5  . S e r v i c e  1 - 8 8 8 - U C N - 9 9 8 1  

F a x  1 - 8 0 0 - 9 2 1 - 9 3 6 6  . i n f o @ u c n . n e t  

1 4 8 7 0  P o n y  E x p r e s s  R o a d  . B l u f f d a l e ,  U t a h ,  8 4 0 6 5  



Our first quarter 2002 performance saw substantial gains over the same period the year before. Our revenue 
for the first quarter of 2002 was $4,827,310. This exceeded the first quarter revenue of 2001 by 64%. 
Even more important we realized positive net income for the first time! 

Our first quarter 2002 revenue exceeded the fourth quarter revenue by 22%. Our membership grew from 
32,935 on December 31,2001, to 53,147 on March 3 1,2002. 

These are some of our successes this year. As one of Buyer's largest investors as well as a member of its 
Board and management team, I f d y  believe in its success and future. It is rewarding to see the company grow 
when many of its competitors are stagnant or even closing their doors. I look forward to sustained growth. We are 
grateful to each of you and are working very hard to protect and enhance the value of each shareholder's investment. 

Thank you all for your support and continued interest in our company. 

Sincerely, 

Theodore Stem 
Chairman and CEO 



OUR BUSINESS 

Buyers United, Inc. ("the Company" or "Buyers United") is a Delaware corporation that has been engaged 
for the past five years in the business of selling telecommunication services and now represents approximately 
33,000 small businesses and residential consumers across America. Buyers United offers long distance telephone 
service and related products, including calling cards and toll free 8001888 services. Long distance and related 
services are provided by five different long distance companies. 

The Company has refined its business model over the past several years to address specific niche 
opportunities in the vast communications industry. The Company's new brand, United Carrier Networks (UCN), 
targets business customers, while the brand developed during 2000, Buyersonline (BOL), is intended to cater to the 
residential consumer. The use of the two distinct brands allows the Company to specifically meet the needs of both 
customer types, without creating channel conflicts. 

Buyers United plans to offer a suite of services to business customers such as teleconferencing, call center 
routing services, and enhanced data solutions. These different services would allow the Company to facilitate the 
specific, and sometimes sophisticated needs of large commercial customers. The Company began significantly 
marketing toward this particular segment in 2001, and will continue efforts to market to this segment through 2002. 

Buyers United is now pursuing multiple marketing avenues, including marketing through the Internet, using 
independent agents, and contracting with partners to stimulate interest in service offerings. The Company's 
shopping and referral rebate programs give customers additional cost saving opportunities and significantly increases 
customer retention. The new UCN web site gives specialized services and options for business customers and the 
agents that represent them. 

There are approximately 5,000 independent telecommunications agents around the country that are 
responsible for a substantial amount of annual U.S. telecommunication sales. Since the upsurge of agent-oriented 
business during mid-2000, Buyers United has engaged over 2,400 of these independent agents to sell its business and 
residential telecommunications services. 

Buyers United intends to continue to pursue long distance customers through partners that market through 
the Internet and promote its services. Its largest partner is an online comparison shopping service, 
LowerMyBills.com. 

MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

The common stock of Buyers United trades sporadically in the over-the-counter market. The following table 
sets forth for the respective periods indicated the prices of the common stock in the over-the-counter market, as 
reported and summarized on the OTC Bulletin Board. Such prices are based on inter-dealer bid and asked prices, 
without markup, markdown, commissions, or adjustments and may not represent actual transactions. 

Calendar Quarter Ended High Bid ($) Low Bid ($) 

March 3 1,2000 
June 30,2000 
September 30,2000 
December 3 1.2000 

March 31,2001 
June 30,2001 
September 30,2001 
December 3 1,2001 

Since its inception, no dividends have been paid on the common stock. Buyers United intends to retain any 
earnings for use in its business activities, so it is not expected that any dividends on the common stock will be 



declared and paid in the foreseeable future. There are currently outstanding 1,870,000 shares of Series A 
Convertible Preferred Stock and 563,800 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock. Under the terms of this 
preferred stock, Buyers United cannot make any distributions on its common stock without the approval of a 
majority of the preferred stockholders. At March 31,2002, there were approximately 4,900 holders of record of the 
common stock. 

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Operating statement data for the years erzcled December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999: 

Revenue 
Operating expenses 
Total other expenses, net 
Extraordinary gains (losses) 
Net (loss) 
Preferred stock dividends 
Net (loss) applicable to common 

shareholders 
Net (loss) per share applicable to 
common shareholders 

Balance sheet data as of December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999: 

Current assets 
Total assets 
Current liabilities 
Total liabilities 
Stockholders' equity (deficit) 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION 
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Overview 

Buyers United is engaged in the business of selling to consumers and small businesses long distance and 
Internet access services. The marketing strategy of Buyers United is based on a membership concept under which 
members are entitled to receive the services offered at lower prices. Buyers United uses the purchasing power of its 
membership to negotiate lower cost or rebates from producers and resellers of the services and products. Lower 
costs allow Buyers United to offer more competitive pricing to attract and retain members, and make it possible for 
Buyers United to offer rebate incentive programs to its members for referring new prospective members. Buyers 
United's goal is to build a national consumer membership organization. Its strategy for achieving this goal is to 
focus on expanding service and product offerings, continue its member referral and rebate program, continue 
development of its agent sales program, and pursue Internet advertising to attract new members. 

Buyers United provides services that it believes are perceived by consumers and businesses as essential or 
are compatible with their normal annual expenditures. Since its inception in January 1996, the Company has focused 
on selling long distance service. This focus has enabled Buyers United to build the size of its membership base. 

Buyers United currently has over 53,000 members. Its target market includes networking professionals, 
small businesses, and middle-class families with an annual household income between $30,000 and $100,000, as 
these are the most likely to respond actively to the cost savings opportunity offered by Buyers United. Members 
reside mostly in high population centers and they tend to spend more than the average on long distance services. The 
Company believes that approximately one-third of the present membership consists of small businesses and 
entrepreneurs who operate home-based businesses. 



Results of Operations - Year Ended December 31,2001 Compared to 2000 

Revenues increased 95% during 2001 to $14.3 million as compared to $7.4 million during 2000. The 
increase was due to higher membership resulting from Buyers United's ongoing agent-related promotional efforts. 
Membership at the end of 2001 increased 80% as compared to the previous year. During the latter part of December 
2001 the Company began seeing the results of its new online marketing programs. Due in large part to these efforts, 
membership growth during the f ~ s t  three months of 2002 has increased 61%. 

During 2001, Buyers United continued its efforts of negotiating with its vendors to lower the cost of long 
distance service provided to members. By offering to increase business volume to certain levels, vendors agreed in 
exchange to offer lower rates. Accordingly, the Company began concentrating volume and new customer sign-ups 
with two of its largest long-distance wholesale carriers. At the end of 2001, the Company's business was primarily 
placed with these two carriers, but offered service to members through a total of five different wholesale vendors. 
In response to the lower costs thus achieved during 2001, the Company was able to offer services to new members, 
particularly those in the agent-sponsored channels, at lower, more competitive prices. This resulted in an increase in 
commission expense for the year. As a result of these offsetting factors, costs of revenues for the year ended 
December 31,2001 were $9.3 million, or 66% of revenue, as compared to costs of $4.8 million, or 65% of revenue, 
for the year ended December 31,2000. The resultant gross profit margin for 2001 was down slightly at 34.8%, as 
compared to the margin of 35.1% experienced during 2000. The Company expects that gross margins will increase 
slightly during 2002 as revenue from customers acquired through its online marketing programs becomes more 
significant in relation to overall revenue. 

General and administrative expenses for 2001 increased 18% to $6.1 million as compared to $5.2 million 
for the previous year. Approximately two-thirds of the increase stemmed from higher bad debt estimated write-offs 
incidental to the increased level of revenue. The remaining increase resulted primarily from higher occupancy costs 
during the year. In December of 2000, the Company consolidated four separate facilities into one location. 
However, offsetting the higher rent and maintenance costs were decreased expenses for fund-raising and business 
promotion activities. Except for bad debt allowances which will vary according to revenue levels, the Company 
anticipates slightly lower levels of general adrmnistrative expenses throughout the 2002 year. 

Selling and promotion expenses for the year ended December 31,2001 were $3.3 million, a decrease of 
14% over the prior year's expenses of $3.9 million. During the prior 2000 year, selling and promotion expenses 
were higher mainly due to infomercial production efforts. No such activity occurred during 2001, however the 
resultant significant decrease in production costs was offset somewhat by higher 2001 commission expenses in 
proportion to the increased revenue volume during 2001. 

During 2001, the Company reviewed its investment in leased computer equipment and software, the related 
ongoing maintenance expenses, and the costs primarily incurred in 2000 in connection with the creation of various 
web sites designed to work with Oracle-based applications. The Company determined that it could achieve its 
growth objectives and serve existing and potential customers using a more economical equipment and software 
solution. Accordingly, the Company negotiated with the equipment lessor to return the equipment and cancel the 
lease. 

The Company also replaced its web site software with newly developed programs designed to operate on a 
SQL-based operating system and determined that the costs previously capitalized and associated with the returned 
equipment and software no longer had a realizable value. The total cost of removing the unamortized book value of 
the lease obligation, equipment, software, and capitalized web site development costs totaled $980,086. 

Interest income for 2001 was $15,571 as compared to $21,943 in 2000. The difference is attributable to the 
lower amount of funds on hand during 2001. Interest expense for 2001 was $997,882 as compared to $1.6 million 
for 2000, a decrease of 39%. The decrease is attributable primarily to the significant amount of bridge financing and 
related discount amortization and write-offs the Company experienced during 2000, before converting the bridge 
loans into the Series B Preferred Stock issuance. 



In December 2001, Buyers United recognized an extraordinary gain on the early extinguishment of debt of 
$383,520. Earlier in the year, one of the Company's noteholders sold the obligation to an investment relations firm. 
Subsequently, the Company negotiated a settlement with the investment relations firm. The Company paid $120,000 
and issued 35,000 shares of common stock in exchange for canceling the outstanding obligation plus $25,921 in 
accrued interest. The stock had a fair market value of $22,401. The difference between the balance due, the cash 
paid and the fair market value of the stock issued was recognized as a gain on early extinguishment of debt. By 
contrast, in 2000, the Company recorded a loss of $1.02 million on the early extinguishment of debt. Buyers United 
obtained $2.5 million of debt financing during 2000, which was subsequently exchanged for Series B 8% cumulative 
convertible preferred stock and warrants to purchase common stock. The difference between the estimated fair value 
of the Series B preferred stock and warrants and the carrying amount of the debt was recognized as a loss on early 
extinguishment of debt. 

As a result of the above factors, the net loss before preferred stock dividends decreased 34% to $6.1 million 
for 2001 as compared to $9.1 million for 2000. During 2001, preferred stock dividends amounted to $759,455, 
consisting of $738,957 of 8% cumulative dividends on outstanding Series A and B preferred stock, and $20,498 of 
preferred stock dividends related to the beneficial conversion feature associated with the issuance of the last 
110,000 Series B Preferred shares in early 2001. This compares to total preferred stock dividends during 2000 of 
$2.5 million, consisting of $383,458 of 8% cumulative dividends on Series A and B preferred stock, and $2.1 million 
of preferred stock dividends related to the beneficial conversion feature associated with the issuance of 453,800 
shares of Series B preferred stock. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Buyers United's current ratio at the end of 2001 increased to 0S : l  from 0.3:l at the end of 2000. The 
reasons for the increase mainly resulted from the net increase in current asset amounts related to higher revenues and 
offset by decreases in liabilities resulting from quicker payments and debt restructuring. Restricted cash increased 
over the 2000 level due to the line of credit established in 2000. The line of credit agreement requires control over 
the bank account to which customer payments are remitted as part of the repayment terms. While this cash 
eventually repays the debt obligation with the balance transferring to the Company, due to the controlled nature of 
the account it is reflected on the balance sheet as being "restricted." Accounts receivable increased 47% due to 
higher revenue levels. Other current assets rose 33% at the end of 2001 over 2000 due to amounts capitalized 
associated with the Company's direct response advertising campaign. The current portion of notes payable balance 
decreased 16% due to the amendment of the maturity date of the $1,050,000 note from September 2002 to February 
28,2003, offset by increased borrowing of $875,000 in unsecured promissory notes which are reflected as current 
obligations on the balance sheet. The current portion of capital lease obligations decreased 36% due to both lease , 

payments and the elimination of one of the two capital leases. Accounts payable rose by a net amount of only 12% 
since a year earlier, despite higher revenue and related operating payable increases. Offsetting factors included 
paying off and settling older outstanding amounts owed to vendors. Accrued liabilities increased 29% due mainly to 
increase in accrued rebates and commissions explained below. Accrued dividends increased 69% once the majority 
of the shares were outstanding the entire year during 2001. Accrued rebates and commissions rose 330% at the end 
of 2001 as compared to the previous year due to revenue increases, a higher proportion of which involved outside 
sales agents. 

On June 7,2001 the Company entered into a one-year account receivable financing agreement with RFC 
Capital Corporation ("RFC"). The facility allows the Company to finance up to $2.5 million based on the 
Company's eligible accounts receivable. The facility bears interest at a rate of prime plus 6%, and also required the 
payment of a Commitment Fee of $50,000. The facility allows the Company to borrow against unbilled receivables 
as well as finance regular monthly billings. At December 3 1,2001, the Company had financed the maximum amount 
available based on eligible accounts receivable at that time, which amounted to $574,172. This agreement also 
requires the Company to maintain a restricted cash account for the collection of the Company's receivables. As of 
December 3 1,2001 the Company had $69O,3 12 of restricted cash. 

As of December 31, 2001, the Company had a $1,050,000 note payable to an individual bearing interest at 
18%, payable monthly. On March 13,2002, the noteholder agreed to extend the maturity date of the note to 
February 28,2003. The note provides a conversion feature whereby the holder may convert the note into common 



stock at $2.50 per share. During extension negotiations earlier in 2001, provisions were added such that 50,000 
shares of common stock will be issued to the noteholder at maturity. Should the note be prepaid, 100,000 shares are 
to be issued. 

As of December 31,2001, the Company had several unsecured promissory notes payable to a member of 
the Company's Board of Directors totaling $2,565,000. All but one of the notes (for $400,000) bear interest at a rate 
of 12%, with interest payable upon maturity. The $400,000 note originated in connection with securing more 
favorable rates with certain of the Company's telecommunication providers. Accordingly, based on savings in terms 
of these costs, interest on this note is calculated based on the monthly vendor billings incurred by the Company, not 
to exceed $15,000 per month, payable monthly. While originally payable on demand, by the end of 2001 the notes 
had been renegotiated to mature on July 5,2003. 

During October and November of 2001, the Company raised $825,000 via promissory notes to raise 
working capital and to take part in a service from an unrelated comparison shopping service to solicit new customers. 
All the notes carry essentially the same terms. They are unsecured and bear interest at 12%, payable monthly. 

Principal is also payable monthly, based on 20% of billings collected during each monthly billing period from 
specifically designated existing customers or from any new customers that subscribed via the on-line shopping 
service using the note proceeds. No principal repayments were made during 2001, these notes mature in October 
and November 2003.. Inasmuch as principal payments could vary over time, the Company believes the principal will 
be repaid over a period of approximately one year from the time the notes were issued. Accordingly, the entire 
$825,000 amount outstanding at December 31,2001 is classified as current on the accompanying balance sheet. Up 
through the end of March 2002, the Company had repaid principal in the amount of $122,626. 

During February 2002, Buyers United issued $350,000 in notes payable. Then during the first part of April 
2002 the Company issued an additional $1.35 million in promissory notes. Similar to the notes issued during 2001, 
principal is to be repaid out of collected billings from new customers generated through the online shopping service. 
With respect to these 2002 notes, 38% of the new customer billings are to be reserved for principal repayment. 

However, only half the note proceeds are to be used for this service, the rest being allocated for worlung capital 
purposes, as needed. These notes bear interest at 10% and interest and principal payments are due monthly 

During the years ended December 3 1,2001 and 2000, the Company's net loss applicable to common 
stockholders was $6,827,484 and $11,608,114, respectively. As of December 31,2001, the Company had a working 
capital deficit of $3,569,788 and an accumulated deficit of $25,631,129. During the years ended December 31,2001 
and 2000, the Company's operations used $4,145,290 and $3,418,987 of cash, respectively. These matters raise 
substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements do not include 
any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of asset carrying amounts or the amount and 
classification of liabilities that might result should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern. 

During 2001, the Company began several cost-reduction initiatives. The net result of these efforts resulted 
in operating expenses (unrelated to either costs of revenue or asset disposals) decreasing as a percentage of revenue 
from 123% during 2000 to 66% during 2001. In addition the Company's revenues and number of customers 
increased 95% and 80%, respectively, during 2001 as compared to 2000. 

Subsequent to December 31,2001 the Company obtained $1.7 million of additional funding through the 
issuance of promissory notes and warrants. Of that amount, half is available for working capital, and the other half is 
intended to be used in the Company's ongoing online marketing activities. Such activities have increased the number 
of customers during the first quarter of 2002 by 61%. The Company also renewed its line of credit agreement 
through June 7,2004. Moreover, revenue levels continued to increase during 2002's first quarter. Management 
estimates revenue for the first three months of 2002 to be approximately $4.7 million, or 19% higher than the 
previous quarter and expects the trend of revenue increases to continue throughout 2002. As a result of the revenue 
growth and ongoing cost-reduction efforts, the Company has achieved profitability during the first quarter of 2002 
(unaudited), and management believes the Company will continue to be profitable during the year ended December 
3 1,2002. 



Forward-looking statements 

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1985 provides a safe harbor for forward-looking statements 
made by Buyers United. All statements, other than statements of historical fact, which address activities, actions, 
goals, prospects, or new developments that the Company expects or anticipates will or may occur in the future, 
including such things as expansion and growth of its operations and other such matters are forward-looking 
statements. Any one or a combination of factors could materially affect Buyers United's operations and financial 
condition. These factors include the availability of capital, competitive pressures, success or failure of marketing 
programs, changes in pricing and availability of services and products offered to members, legal and regulatory 
initiatives affecting long distance service, and conditions in the capital markets. Forward-looking statements made 
by Buyers United are based on knowledge of its business and the environment in which it operates as of the date of 
this report. Because of the factors listed above, as well as other factors beyond its control, actual results may differ 
from those in the forward-looking statements. 

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON 
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

On February 20,2002, Buyers United dismissed Arthur Andersen LLP ("Andersen") as its independent 
public accountants. The change was recommended by the Company's Audit Committee and approved by the 
Company's Board of Directors. 

Andersen performed audits of the Company's financial statements as of and for the years ended December 
31, 1999 and 2000. Their audit reports did not contain an adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion; however, their 
audit reports for each of the years ended December 3 1,1999 and 2000 were modified as to the uncertainty of the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Their reports were not qualified or modified as to audit scope or 
accounting principles. 

During the years ended December 31,1999 and 2000, and during the interim period from December 3 1, 
2000 to February 20,2002, there were no disagreements between the Company and Andersen on any matter of 
accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which 
disagreements, if not resolved to the satisfaction of Andersen, would have caused Andersen to make reference to the 
subject matter of such disagreements in their reports. 

During the years ended December 3 1,1999 and 2000 and during the interim period from December 3 1, 
2000 to February 20,2002, Andersen did not advise the Company of any reportable events as described in Item 
304(a)(l)(iv)(B) of Regulation S-B. 

Andersen has furnished the Company with a letter to the SEC stating they agree with the above statements. 
The letter was attached as an exhibit on the Company's Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 26,2002. 

On February 20,2002, the Company's Board of Directors engaged Crowe, Chizek and Company LLP 
("Crowe Chizek") as the Company's new independent public accountants. Up to that date, neither the Company nor 
anyone on its behalf consulted Crowe Chizek regarding the application of accounting principles to specific 
transactions or the type of audit opinion that might be rendered on the Company's financial statements. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

Board of Directors and Shareholders 
Buyers United, Inc. and Subsidiary 
Salt Lake City, Utah 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of B~yers United, Inc. and 
S~~bsidiary as of December 31, 2001 and the related consolidated statements of operations, 
stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on OLE a ~ ~ d i t .  The financial statements of B~~yers United, Inc. and 
S~~bsidiary as of December 31,2000 were audited by other auditors whose report dated March 29, 
2001 expressed an ~mqualified opinion, with an explanatory paragraph as to the Company's 
contin~led existence, on those statements. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with a~lditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards req~ure that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence s~pporting the arno~mts and disclos~u-es in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the acco~mting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that OLE a ~ ~ d i t  provides a reasonable basis for OLE opinion. 

In OLE opinion, the 2001 consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of B~yers United, Lnc. and S~~bsidiary as of December 31, 
2001 and the res~dts of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with 
acco~mting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared ass~ming that the Company will 
continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company has 
suffered rec~u-ring losses from operations, deficit cash flows from operations, negative working 
capital, and has a net capital deficiency. These results as reported in the accompanying financial 
statements raise s~~bstantial d o ~ ~ b t  about the Company's ability to contin~~e as a going concern. 
Management's plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 1. The financial 
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this ~mcertainty. 

Crowe, Chizek and Company, LLP 

Oak Brook, Illinois 
March 9,2002, except for Note 5, 
as to which the date is March 13,2002 



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

To B~~yers United, Inc.: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' eq~~ i ty  
(deficit) and cash flows of Buyers United, Inc. (a Delaware corporation, formerly known as 
B~ryersOnline.com, Inc.) and s~~bsidiary for the year ended December 31,2000. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States. Those standards req~ure that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
abo~lt whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence s~lpporting the amo~mts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An a~rdit also includes assessing the acco~mting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
We believe that OLE a~tdit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In OLK opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
res~dts of operations of B~zyers United, inc. and s~~bsidiary and their cash flows for the year ended 
December 31,2000 in conformity with acco~mting principles generally accepted in the United States. 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared ass~uning that the Company will 
contin~~e as a going concern. As discrrssed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the 
Company has suffered rec~~rring losses from operations, deficit cash flows from operations, 
negative working capital, and has a net capital deficiency. These matters raise s~~bstantial d o ~ ~ b t  
about the Company's ability to contin~~e as a going concern. Management's plans in regard to these 
matters are also described in Note 1. The accompanying financial statements do not include any 
adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of asset carrying amo~mts or the arno~mt 
and classification of liabilities that might res~dt sho~dd the Company be ~mable to contin~~e as a 
going concern. 

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP 

Salt Lake City, Utah 
March 29,2001 



BUYERS UNITED, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

December 31,2001 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash 
Restricted cash 
Acco~mts receivable, net of allowance for 

do~~b t f i l  acco~mts of $520,000 
Other current assets 

Total current assets 

Property and eq~upment, net 652,576 

Debt issuance costs, net of acc~unulated amortization 
of $149,104 

Deposits 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT 
Current liabilities 

Checks drawn in excess of available cash balances 
Line of credit 
Current portion of long-term debt 
Acco~mts p ayable 
Accrtled liabilities 
Accrued commissions and rebates 
Accrued dividends payable on preferred stock 

Total c~ment liabilities 

Long-term liabilities 
Long-term debt, net of c~wrent portion 

Total liabilities 

Stockholders' deficit 
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; 15,000,000 shares authorized; 
Series A 8% cumulative convertible preferred stock; 
1,870,000 shares issued and outstanding (liq~udation value of 
$3,740,000) 

Series B 8% c~lmulative convertible preferred stock; 563,800 shares 
issued and outstanding (liq~udation value of $5,638,000) 

Common stock, $0.0001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; 
5,312,629 shares issued and outstanding 

Additional paid-in capital 
Warrants and options o~ltstanding 
Deferred cons~dting fees 
Accum~~lated deficit 

Total stockholders' deficit 

Total liabilities and stockholders' deficit $ 4,331,742 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 



BUYERS UNITED, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMEWS OF OPERATIONS 

Years ended December 31,2001 and 2000 

Revenues 
Telecommunications services 
Other 

Total revenues 

Operating expenses 
Costs of revenues 
General and admirustrative 
Selling and promotion 
Disposal of leased equipment and web site development costs 

Total operating expenses 

Loss from operations 

Other income (expense) 
Interest income 
Interest expense 

Total other expense, net 

Loss before extraordinary item 

Extraordinary item - gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt 

Net loss 

Preferred stock dividends 
8% dividends on Series A and B preferred stock 
Beneficial conversion feature related to Series B preferred stock 

Total preferred stock dividends 

Net loss applicable to common stockholders 

Basic and diluted net loss per common share 
Net loss applicable to common stockholders before 
extraordinary item 

Extraordinary item - gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt 

Net loss applicable to common stockholders 

Weighted average common shares outstanding 
Basic and diluted 

Years Ended 
December 31, 

2001 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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BUYERS UMTED, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) 

Years ended December 31,2001 and 2000 

Additional 
Paid-in 
Capital 

$ 7,146,175 

187,184 
62,316 

722,050 
37,742 

909,285 

1,523,146 

2,098,134 

319,671 

Warrants/ 
Options 

Outstanding 

Deferred 
Consulting Accumulated 

Fees Deficit 
Preferred Stock 

Shares Amount 
Common Stock 

Shares Amount 

Balance at December 31,1999 2,000,000 $ 200 

Issuance of common shares and warrants for 
Issuance of common shares for services 
Conversion of preferred shares to common 
Issuance of warrants for services and with 
consulting agreements 

Amortization of deferred consulting fees 
Issuance of warrants with notes payable 
Issuance of options for debt guarantee 
Beneficial conversion feature in connection 
with debt extension 

Imputed interest on notes payable 
Issuance of Series B preferred stock and 
warrants, net of offering costs 

cash 

(125,000) 

Issuance of Series B preferred stock and 
warrants upon conversion of notes 254,500 

Beneficial conversion dividend on Series B 
preferred stock 

Preferred stock dividends 
Issuance of common shares as payment of 
preferred stock dividends 

Net loss 

Balance at December 31,2000 2,328,800 233 



BUYERS UNITED, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) - (Continued) 

Years ended December 31,2001 and 2000 

Additional 
Paid-in 
Capital 

Warrants/ 
Options 

Outstanding 

Deferred 
Consulting 

Fees 
Preferred Stock 

Shares Amount 
Common Stock 

Shares Amount 
Accumulated 

Deficit Total 

BaIance at December 31,2000 2,328,800 $ 233 

Issuance of common shares for services 
Issuance of common shares with 
consulting agreement 

Issuance of common shares in connection 
with debt extinguishments 

Conversion of preferred shares to common (5,000) 
Issuance of common shares in connection 
with notes payable 

Issuance of warrants for services and with 
consulting agreements 

Amortization of deferred consulting fees 
Issuance of warrants with notes payable 
Issuance of common stock for debt guarantee - 
Imputed interest on notes payable 
Issuance of Series B preferred stock and 
warrants, net of offering costs 110,000 

Beneficial conversion dividend on 
Series B   referred stock 

Cancellation of options issued for services 
Preferred stock dividends 
Issuance of common shares as payment 
of preferred stock dividends 

Balance at December 31,2001 2.433.800 $ 244 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 



BUYERS UNITED, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Years ended December 31,2001 and 2000 

2001 
Cash flows from operating activities 

Net loss $ (6,068,029) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in 
operating activities 

Extraordinary item - (gain) loss on early extinguishment of debt (383,520) 
Depreciation and amortization 
Interest expense res~dting from issuing stock and warrants 
with notes 

Interest expense associated with beneficial conversion feature 
in connection with debt extension 

Amortization of disco~mt on notes payable 
Amortization of note financing costs 
Amortization of deferred consulting fees 
Services rendered in exchange for shares of common stock 
Expense related to the issuance of options to purchase 
common shares 

Loss on disposal of leased assets and web site 
development costs 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities 
Acco~mts receivable 
Other current assets 
Checks in excess of available cash balances 
Accormts p ayable 
Accrued commissions and rebates 
Accrued liabilities 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Increase in other assets 
Purchases of property and eq~upment 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Change in restricted cash 
Net borrowings ~mder line of credit 
Borrowings ~mder notes payable, net of debt issuance costs 
Principal payments on notes payable 
Principal payments on capital lease obligations 
Issuance of preferred/comrnon shares for cash, 
net of offering costs 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 

Cash at the beginning of the year 

Cash at the end of the year 



BUYERS UNITED, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - (Coniin~~ed) 

Years ended December 31,2001 and 2000 

S~pplemental cash flow information 
Cash paid for interest 

S~pplemental schedule of noncash investing and 
financing activities 

Conversion of notes payable to common shares 
Issuance of common shares in payment of preferred 
stock dividend 

Issuance of common shares in payment of deferred services 
Issuance of common shares in payment of deferred 
financing costs 

Issuance of common shares in extinguishment of debt 
Issuance of warrants with preferred shares 
Issuance of warrants with promissory notes 
Beneficial conversion dividend on Series B preferred shares 
Accrual of dividend payable on preferred stock 
Assets acq~ured ~mder  capital lease arrangements 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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BUYERS UNITED, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31,2001 and 2000 

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS 

Buyers United, Inc. ("the Company") was incorporated on January 16,1996 in the state of Utah 
and was reincorporated in the state of Delaware on April 9,1999. The Company was formerly 
known as Linguistix, Inc., Buyers United International, Inc., BUI, Inc., and BuyersOnline.com, 
Inc. On November 20,2001, the Company changed its name to Buyers United, Inc., the same 
name as its dormant, wholly owned Utah st~bsidiary. The Company plans to merge the 
subsidiary into the parent entity during 2002. At the time of the name change, the Company's 
trading symbol also changed to "BYRS." 

The Company is a consumer buying organization with the objective of providing high quality 
consumer products and services at favorable prices to its members. The Company forms 
strategic alliances with various consumer service providers in an effort to combine the 
ptwchasing power of its members to negotiate favorable prices from these providers. The 
Company markets its products and services principally by offering incentives to its existing 
members to refer new members to the Company's products and services. During the years 
ended December 31,2001 and 2000, the Company primarily provided discounted long distance 
telecommunication services to its members. 

During the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company's net loss applicable to 
common stockholders was $6,827,484 and $11,608,114, respectively. As of December 31,2001, 
the Company had a working capital deficit of $3,569,788 and an accumulated deficit of 
$25,631,129. During the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company's operations 
used $4,145,290 and $3,418,987 of cash, respectively. These matters raise substantial doubt 
about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements do not 
include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of asset carrying 
amounts or the amount and classification of liabilities that might result should the Company be 
unable to continue as a going concern. 

Dtwing 2001, the Company began several cost-reduction initiatives. The net result of these 
efforts restllted in operating expenses (unrelated to either costs of revenue or asset disposals) 
decreasing as a percentage of revenue from 123% during 2000 to 66% during 2001. In addition, 
the Company's revenues and number of customers increased 95% and 80%, respectively, 
during 2001 as compared to 2000. 

As discussed in Note 13, s~lbseq~lent to December 31,2001, the Company obtained $1.7 million 
of additional funding through the issuance of promissory notes and warrants. Of that amount, 
half is available for working capital, and the other half is intended to be used in the Company's 
ongoing online marketing activities. Such activities have increased the number of customers 
during the first quarter of 2002 by 61% (unaudited). The Company also renewed its line of 
credit agreement through J~me 7,2004. Moreover, revenue levels continued to increase d~lring 
2002's first quarter. Management estimates revenue for the first three months of 2002 to be 
approximately 



BUYERS UNITED, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31,2001 and 2000 

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS 
(Contintled) 

$4.7 million, or 19% higher than the previous quarter and expects the trend of revenue increases 
to continue throt~ghout 2002 (unaudited). As a res~dt of the revenue growth and ongoing cost- 
redtlction efforts, the Company has achieved profitability d ~ ~ i n g  the first quarter of 2002 
(~maudited) and management believes that the Company will continue to be profitable during 
the year ended December 31,2002. 

The Company is subject to certain risk factors frequently encountered by companies lacking 
adequate capital and which are in the early stages of developing a b~lsiness line that may 
impact its ability to become a profitable enterprise. These risk factors include: 

The consumer buying organization industry is characterized by intense competition, 
and many of the Company's competitors are substantially larger than the Company 
with greater financial and other resources. In addition, the Company is currently 
marketing telecommtmications services, including long distance services, to its 
members. The US. long distance telecommunications industry is highly competitive 
and sigruficantly infl~~enced by the marketing and pricing strategies of the major 
industry participants, which are sigruficantly larger than the Company and have 
substantially greater resources. 

The Company's relationship marketing system is or may be subject to or affected by 
extensive government regulation, including without limitations, state regulation of 
marketing practices and federal and state regulation of the offer and sale of business 
franchises, business opportunities, and securities. Long distance telecommtmications 
carriers currently are subject to extensive federal and state government regulation. 

Additional funds will be reqt*ed to finance the Company's operations until 
profitability can be achieved and to hmd the repayment of debt obligations and other 
liabilities. There can be no assurance that the additional fwtding will be available or, if 
available, that it will be available on acceptable terms or in required amotmts. 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Principles of Consolidation: The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the 
accounts of Buyers United, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiary of the same name. All 
sigruficant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated upon consolidation. 



BUYERS UNITED, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31,2001 and 2000 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contintzed) 

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements: The preparation of financial 
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America requires management to make estimates and asstmptions that affect the reported 
amo~mts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amo~mts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual restdts could differ from these estimates. 

Revenue Recowtion: - The Company's revenue recognition policy with respect to reseller 
agreements is to record gross revenues and receivables from customers when the Company acts 
as principal in the transaction; takes title to the products or services; and has risks and rewards 
of ownership, such as risk of loss for collection, delivery, or returns. With respect to 
commission or other agent or broker arrangements, the Company recognizes net commission 
revenues. Revenues from sales of products and services are recognized upon shipment of the 
products or provision of the services to the customers, and revenues from commissioned 
services are recognized as the services are provided. 

Restricted Cash: In accordance with the Company's agreement with RFC Capital Corp. 
(Note 4), the Company maintains a restricted cash account for the collection of the Company's 
receivables. As of December 31,2001, the Company had $690,312 of cash that was restricted. 

Properhr - - and Equipment: Property and equipment are stated at cost. Major additions and 
improvements are capitalized, while minor repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when 
incurred. In accordance with Statement of Position 98-1, "Accounting for the Costs of 
Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use," the Company capitalizes certain 
costs incurred for the development of internal use software. These costs include the costs 
associated with coding, software configuration, upgrades, and enhancements. In March 2000, 
the Emergmg Issues Task Force issued its consensus on Issue No. 00-2, "Accounting for Web 
Site Development Costs." Pursuant to this pronouncement, the Company has capitalized the 
direct costs of major development related to its web site (see Note 3). 

Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of the related assets as follows: 

Computer and office eq~upment 2 to 3 years 
Internal-use software and web site development costs 2 years 
Furniture and fixtures 3 to 7 years 

Advertising Costs: The Company advertises its services through traditional venues, such as 
Internet, television, print media, and radio, to the general pt~blic. Costs associated with these 
advertising means are expensed as incurred, and approximated $1,057,000 and $446,000 for the 
years ended December 31,2001 and 2000, respectively. 

(Continued) 



BUYERS UNITED, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31,2001 and 2000 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contin~~ed) 

In addition to the traditional advertising means noted above, the Company participates in a 
direct response advertising campaign with LowerMyBills.com (LMB), an Internet service 
provider. Through this campaign, the Company's name and the services it provides are 
displayed on LMB's web site. The Company is obligated to pay LMB a fee when a customer 
signs up for services through LMB's web site. The fees associated with this advertising 
campaign were deferred and approximated $170,000 during the year ended December 31,2001. 
These fees have been amortized over the period during which the future benefits are expected 
to be received, which was six months at December 31,2001. The fees and related accumulated 
amortization of $42,000 was included with other current assets as of December 31,2001. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: The carrying amounts reported in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheet for cash, receivables, and accounts payable approximate fair values 
because of the immediate or short-term maturities of these financial instruments. The fair value 
of the Company's notes payable and preferred stock also approximate fair value based on 
current rates for similar debt and fixed-rate instruments. 

Debt Issuance Costs: As an inducement to various shareholders and board members to lend 
monies to the Company, shares of common stock were issued to them. The fair market value of 
those shares at the date of issuance has been capitalized as debt issuance costs and is being 
amortized over the life of the loans. Amortization of these costs for the years ended 
December 31, 2001 and 2000 was $149,104 and $0, respectively, and are included in interest 
expense. The remaining amortization period for these costs is less than two years as of 
December 31,2001. 

Income Taxes: The Company recognizes a liability or asset for the deferred income tax 
consequences of all temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their reported amounts in the financial statements that will result in taxable or deductible 
amounts in future years when the reported amounts of the assets and liabilities are recovered or 
settled. These deferred income tax assets or liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates 
that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. Recognition of deferred tax 
assets is limited to amounts considered by management to be more likely than not of realization 
in future periods. 

Net Loss Per Common Share : Basic net loss per common share ("Basic EPS") excludes dilution 
and is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of common shares 
outstanding during the year. Diluted net loss per common share ("Diluted EPS") reflects the 
potential dilution that could OCCLE if stock options or other common stock equivalents were 
exercised or converted into common stock. The computation of Diluted EPS does not assume 
exercise or conversion of securities that would have an antidilutive effect on net loss per 
common share. 

(Continued) 



BUYERS UNITED, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31,2001 and 2000 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Outstanding options of employees and directors to purchase 2,818,585 and 3,053,019 shares of 
common stock as of December 31,2001 and 2000, respectively; 5,252,800 and 4,144,000 shares of 
common stock issuable upon the conversion of preferred stock as of December 31, 2001 and 
2000, respectively; and 5,362,132 and 4,601,382 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise 
of warrants to purchase common stock as of December 31,2001 and 2000, respectively, were not 
included in the computation of Dil~~ted EPS because they wo~dd be antidilutive. 

Reclassifications: Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial 
statements to conform to the current year presentation. 

Recent Accounting - Pronouncements: In June 1998, Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards ("SFAS") No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities," 
was issued. SFAS No. 133 establishes new accounting and reporting standards for companies 
to report information about derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments 
embedded in other contracts (collectively referred to as derivatives), and for hedging activities. 
This statement, as amended, was adopted by the Company effective January 1, 2001. The 
adoption of this statement did not have a material impact on the Company's results of 
operations, financial position, or liq~udity. 

On June 29, 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) approved its proposed 
SFAS No. 141 ("SFAS No. 141"), "Business Combinations," and SFAS No. 142 ("SFAS No. 142"), 
"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." 

Under SFAS No. 141, all business combinations should be accounted for using the ptlrchase 
method of accounting; use of the pooling-of-interests method is prohibited. The provisions of 
the statement apply to all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 142 
applies to all acquired intangible assets whether acquired singly, as part of a group, or in a 
business combination. The statement will supersede Accounting Principles Board ("APB") 
Opinion No. 17, "Intangible Assets," and will carry forward provisions in APB Opinion No. 17 
related to internally developed intangible assets. The Company believes that the adoption of 
these statements will not have a material impact on the Company's res~dts of operations, 
financial position, or liquidity. 

In Jtme 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations." 
The Company is required to adopt SFAS No. 143 for fiscal years beginning after June 15,2002. 
Thus, the Company will need to adopt SFAS No. 143 as of January 1, 2003. SFAS No. 143 
requires businesses to recognize a liability for an asset retirement obligation when it is inc~lrred. 
This liability sho~dd be recorded at its fair val~~e,  and a corresponding increase in the carrying 
amount of the related long-term asset should be recorded as well. The Company believes the 
adoption of SFAS No. 143 on Jan~~ary  1,2003 will not have a material impact on the Company's 
results of operations, financial position, or liquidity. 



BUYERS UNITED, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31,2001 and 2000 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

On October 3,2001, the FASB isstled SFAS No. 144, "Accomting for the Impairment or Disposal 
of Long-Lived Assets." SFAS No. 144 develops one accotmting model for long-lived assets that 
are to be disposed of by sale. The long-lived assets that are to be disposed of by sale should be 
measured at the lower of book value or fair value less any selling expenses. Additionally, SFAS 
No. 144 expands the scope of discontinued operations to include all components of an entity 
with operations that can be distinguished from the rest of the entity and will be eliminated 
from the ongoing operations of the entity in a disposal transaction. The statement is effective 
for the Company for all financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2001. Management believes that the adoption of this pronouncement will not 
have a material effect on the Company's restdts of operations, financial position, or liquidity. 

NOTE 3 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

At December 31,2001, property and equipment consists of the following: 

Computer and office equipment $ 708,688 
Internal-use software and web site 
development costs 558,548 

Furniture and fixtures 217,690 
1,484,926 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 832,350 

Property and equipment at December 31,2001 incltldes $327,992 of assets under a capital lease 
and accumulated amortization of $208,369. 

Dtring the current year, the Company reviewed its investment in leased computer equipment 
and software, and determined that it could achieve its growth objectives and serve its 
customers with a different eqtupment and software solution. Dtring the current year, the 
Company also replaced its web site software with a newly-developed program. The total cost 
of removing the unamortized book value of the above assets was $980,086 and is included in 
the consolidated statement of operations. 

(Continued) 
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NOTE 4 - LINE OF CREDIT 

On June 7, 2001, the Company entered into a line of credit agreement with RFC Capital 
Corporation ("RFC"). The facility allows the Company to borrow LIP to $2,500,000 based on the 
Company's eligble accounts receivable and unbilled receivables. The facility bears interest at 
prime plus 6% and expires June 2002. 

As security for the line of credit, the Company is reqtlired to maintain a lock box at a financial 
institution. As of December 31,2001, there was $690,312 of restricted cash associated with this 
agreement. At December 31, 2001, the Company had borrowed the maximum amount 
available based on eligible accounts receivable at that time, which amounted to $574,172. 

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT 

Long-term debt consists of the following: 

Unsecured notes payable - Chairman of the Board, 
bearing interest of 12% with both principal and any 
unpaid interest due July 5,2003. 

Secured note payable bearing interest at 18%, payable 
monthly. Principal and any ~mpaid interest due 
February 28, 2003. The note is secured by certain assets 
of a member of the Board of Directors. 

Unsecured promissory notes bearing interest at 12%. 
Principal payments due monthly based on 20% of 
billings collected from specifically-designated customers. 
All unpaid interest and principal are due November 
2003. The Company believes that the principal will be 
repaid over a period of one year from the date of issue 
based on forecasted billings to these customers. 

Other 

Less current portion 
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NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Long-term debt maturities are as follows: 

Less current maturities 

NOTE 6 - NOTES PAYABLE 

The secured note payable provides a conversion feature whereby the holder may convert the 
note into common stock at $2.50 per share. This feature was amended to the note agreement 
during 2000. On the date of the amendment, the quoted market value of the Company's 
comrnon stock exceeded the conversion price of $2.50 per share; therefore, in 2000, the 
Company recorded a non-cash charge to interest expense of $722,050 representing the intrinsic 
value of the beneficial conversion feahve. 

In connection with the unsecured promissory notes, two-year warrants to purchase 211,850 
shares of common stock at $2.50 per share were also issued to the noteholders. Warrants for an 
additional 25,500 shares were issued to the sales agent. The estimated fair valt~e of the warrants 
of $32,457, based on using the Black-Scholes pricing model, was allocated to the warrants and 
recorded as a discount to the carrying value of the notes. The discount is being amortized to 
interest expense over the estimated term of the notes. 

In June 2001, the Company entered into a joint sales agreement with Infotopia, Inc. 
("Infotopia"), a direct response marketer. In connection with the agreement, Infotopia agreed to 
loan the Company $500,000. Subsequent to entering into the sales agreement, the two 
companies decided not to pursue further any joint activity. During 2001, Infotopia sold the 
loan obligation to Pali Investments, Inc. ("Pali"), an unrelated investment relations firm. In 
December 2001, the Company negotiated a settlement with Pali. Under the terms of the 
settlement, the Company paid $120,000 and issued 35,000 shares of common stock in exchange 
for canceling the outstanding obligation plus $25,921 in accrued interest. The stock had a fair 
market value of $22,401. Accordingly, based on these amo~mts, the Company recorded an 
extraordinary gain on the early extinguishments of the debt in the amotmt of $383,520. 

During 2000, various investors, including three members of the Company's Board of Directors, 
loaned the Company $2,795,000 ~mder promissory note agreements. Certain of the notes were 
non-interest-bearing for an initial term and, if not repaid, bore interest at rates ranging from 
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NOTE 6 - NOTES PAYABLE (Contintled) 

12% to 18%. The Company imputed interest of $37,742 for the non-interest periods, which was 
recorded as a discount on the notes. The other agreements bore interest at rates ranging from 
12% to 18%. One note for $150,000 was repaid; an 18% $100,000 note remained outstanding at 
December 31,2000 with a carrying amount of $98,613, net of discount, and an o r i p a l  due date 
of J a n ~ ~ a r y  31,2001. This note was amended to extend the interest and principal payments to be 
due in Jtdy 2003 (see Note 5). The remaining $2,545,000 of notes were exchanged for shares of 
Series B 8% c~~mulative convertible preferred stock and warrants in October 2000 (see Notes 9 
and 10). 

In connection with the loans described in the preceding paragraph, the Company issued 
1,432,500 warrants to the note holders and 32,500 warrants to the Placement Agent. The 
warrants entitle the holders to purchase shares of common stock at prices ranging between 
$2.00 and $2.50 per share until J ~ m e  30, 2005. The estimated fair v a l ~ ~ e  of the warrants of 
$1,427,654, based on using the Black-Scholes pricing model, was allocated to the warrants and 
recorded as a discount to the carrymg value of the notes. The discount was being amortized to 
interest expense over the term of the notes. When the notes were subsequently exchanged for 
Series B preferred stock and warrants to purchase common stock, the difference between the 
estimated fair value of the Series B preferred stock and warrants and the carrying amount of the 
debt was recognized as an extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt. The 
extraordinary loss on early extinguishment in 2000 amounted to $1,024,574. 

NOTE 7 - LEASES 

In December 2000, the Company moved all of its operations into one b ~ d d i n g  and entered into 
a noncancellable operating lease agreement for the office space. The Company has also entered 
into operating leases for various pieces of office equipment and has a capital lease for software. 
The following is a sched~de of future minimum payments under the leases as of December 31, 
2001: 

Capital Operating 
Leases Leases 

2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
Thereafter 

Total future rnbimum lease p ayments 
Less amount representing interest 

Total obligations tmder capital leases - all c~lrrent $ 202,157 

(Continued) 
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NOTE 7 - LEASES (Continued) 

Rent expense was approximately $517,600 and $220,000 for the years ended December 31,2001 
and 2000, respectively. 

NOTE 8 - INCOME TAXES 

The components of the Company's net deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows: 

Deferred income tax assets: 
Net operating loss carryforwards 
Reserves and accrued liabilities 
Other 

Total deferred income tax assets 
Valuation allowance 

Net deferred income tax asset 217,000 

Deferred income tax liabilities: 
Capitalized software costs 
Tax depreciation in excess of book depreciation 

Net deferred income tax liability (217,000) 

Net deferred income taxes $ - 

As of December 31,2001, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards for federal income 
tax reporting purposes of approximately $18,000,000. The tax net operating loss carryforwards 
will expire begruing in 2012. 

No benefit for income taxes has been recorded during the year ended December 31, 2001. 
Inasmuch as the Company's history includes accum~dated net operating losses, it is uncertain 
as to whether the Company's deferred tax asset can be fully realized. Accordingly, a valtmtion 
allowance has been recorded to reduce the deferred income tax assets. The net change in the 
valuation allowance for deferred tax assets during the year ended December 31, 2001 was an 
increase of $2,166,000. 

(Continued) 
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NOTE 9 - CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS 

Preferred Stock: The Board of Directors is a~lthorized to class$ any shares of the Company's 
authorized but unissued preferred stock in one or more series. With respect to each series, the 
Board of Directors is authorized to determine the number of shares that constitutes such series; 
the rate of dividend, if any, payable on shares of such series; whether the shares of such series 
shall be c~unulative, non-cum~dative, or partially cum~dative as to dividends and the dates from 
which any c~mtdative dividends are to accumulate; whether the shares of such series may be 
redeemed, and, if so, the price or prices at which and the terms and conditions on which shares 
of such series may be redeemed; the amount payable upon shares of such series in the event of 
the vol~mtary or involuntary dissolution, liquidation, or winding up of the affairs of the 
Company; the sinking hmd provisions, if any, for the redemption of shares of such series; the 
voting rights, if any, of the shares of such series; the terms and conditions, if any, on which 
shares of such series may be converted into shares of capital stock of the Company of any other 
class or series; whether the shares of such series are to be preferred over shares of capital stock 
of the Company of any other class or series as to dividends or upon the voltmtary or 
involuntary dissolution, liq~udation, or termination of the affairs of the Company or otherwise; 
and any other characteristics, preferences, limitations, rights, privileges, imrn~mities, or terms. 

Series A 8% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock: D ~ r i n g  1999, the Board of Directors 
authorized the issuance of 2,000,000 shares of Series A 8% Cumulative Convertible Preferred 
Stock ("Series A Preferred Stock) at an offering price of $2.00 per share. Gross proceeds of 
$4,000,000 were raised upon sale of the shares. 

The Series A Preferred Stock is convertible to common stock at any time at the election of the 
holder and, under limited circumstances, at the election of the Company. The conversion rate 
is one for one, subject to adjustment in the event of a recapitalization, reorganization, or other 
corporate restructuring or in the event that the Company shall sell or otherwise issue securities 
at a price below $2.00 per share or the then adjusted conversion price. The Series A Preferred 
Stock can be redeemed at the Company's election at any time commencing January 1,2005 at a 
redemption price of $2.00 per share plus all accrued dividends as of the redemption date. 
During 2001 and 2000, certain stockholders converted 5,000 and 125,000 Series A preferred 
shares, respectively, into common shares. 

Series B 8% C~mulative Convertible Preferred Stock: In September 2000, the Board of Directors 
authorized the issuance of 1,234,500 shares of Series B 8% Cum~dative Convertible Preferred 
Stock ("Series B Preferred Stock) and related warrants to purchase common shares at an 
offering price of $10.00 per unit. Each ~mi t  consists of one share of Series B Preferred Stock and 
five warrants to purchase one share of common stock at an exercise price of $2.50 per share. 
During 2000, various investors made loans to the Company and subsequently elected to 
exchange their promissory notes for units. In addition to the converted loans of $2,545,000, the 
Company raised $1,993,000 through the issuance of ~tnits through December 31, 2000 and 
$1,100,000 through the isstmnce of ~mits in 2001. 
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In connection with the unit offering, the Company agreed to pay the Placement Agent a sales 
commission and expense allowance aggregating 13% of the gross proceeds from the sale of the 
Series B Preferred Stock, in addition to 10% of the gross proceeds of certain related bridge 
financing. The Company also incurred approximately $23,000 of direct expenses in connection 
with the offering. As additional consideration, the Company agreed to issue to the Placement 
Agent warrants to purchase 319,300 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price 
of $2.50 per share. 

As part of the Series B Preferred Stock offering, the Company issued 2,269,000 warrants to 
purchase common stock at $2.50 per share. The Company allocated the net proceeds from the 
offering of $4,208,762 between the Series B Preferred Stock and the warrants based on estimated 
relative fair values. The Series B Preferred Stock was recorded at $2,432,476, and the warrants 
were recorded at $1,776,286. The estimated fair value of the warrants was determined using the 
Black-Scholes pricing model. The Series B Preferred Stock is convertible to common stock at any 
time at the election of the holder and, under limited circumstances, at the election of the 
Company. The conversion rate is five for one, subject to adjustment in the event of a 
recapitalization, reorganization, or other corporate restructuring or in the event that the 
Company shall sell or otherwise issue securities at a price below $2.00 per share or the then 
adjusted conversion price. On most of the dates the Series B preferred shares were issued, the 
quoted market price of the Company's common stock exceeded the $2.00 conversion price. 
Accordingly, the Company measured the intrinsic value of the beneficial conversion feature as 
the difference between the quoted prices of the common stock into which the Series B preferred 
shares are convertible and the recorded value of the Series B preferred shares of $2,432,476. The 
total intrinsic value of the beneficial conversion feature of $2,098,134 has been reflected in the 
accompanying 2000 consolidated financial statements as a preferred stock dividend and as an 
increase to additional paid in capital. 

During the three months ended March 31, 2001, the Company issued an additional 110,000 
shares of preferred stock and 550,000 warrants to purchase cornmon stock. The Company 
allocated the net proceeds from the offering of $1,097,223 between the Series B Preferred Stock 
and the warrants based on estimated relative fair values. Accordingly, the stock was recorded 
at $794,822, and the warrants were recorded at $302,401. In connection with these additional 
Series B shares, the intrinsic value of the beneficial conversion feature of $20,498 was reflected 
in the accompanying 2001 consolidated financial statements as a preferred stock dividend and 
as an increase to additional paid in capital. The Series B Preferred Stock Offering closed on 
April 13,2001. 

The Series B Preferred Stock can be redeemed at the Company's election at any time 
commencing January 1, 2004, at a redemption price of $10.00 per share plus all accrued 
dividends as of the redemption date. 

(Continued) 
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Cumulative dividends accrue on both Series A and B Preferred Stock at the rate of 8% per 
annum from the date of o r i p a l  issue and are payable semi-annually on J ~ m e  30 and 
December 31 of each year out of funds legally available for the payment of dividends. 
Dividends are payable in cash or common stock at the election of the Company. If paid in 
common stock, the number of shares issued will be based on the average of the closing bid 
prices for the common stock over the five trading days immediately prior to the dividend 
payment date. If the Company fails to pay any dividend within 60 days of its due date, the 
conversion price (see below) is adjusted downward by $0.25 per share for each occurrence. 
During the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company declared dividends 
aggregating $738,957 and $383,458, respectively, and to satisfy payment obligations, issued a 
total of 504,884 and 176,455 shares of common stock, respectively. As of December 31,2001, the 
Company had accrued dividends payable in the amount of $378,316. In February 2002, the 
Company settled the dividend payable by issuing 374,534 shares of common stock. 

The Series A and B Preferred Stock have no voting rights, except as required by the General 
Corporation Laws of Delaware that require class votes on certain corporate matters and matters 
affecting the rights of the holders of the Preferred Stock. The Preferred Stock is senior in right 
of payment in the event of liq~udation and with respect to dividends to the common stock and 
all other subsequent preferred stock issuances that may be authorized. The Series A Preferred 
Stock has a liquidation preference of $2.00 per share and the Series B Preferred Stock has a 
Liquidation preference of $10.00 per share. 

Issuances of Common Stock: During 2001 the Company issued 113,300 to four employees in 
payment of services rendered, at an aggregated fair market value of $77,100. 

The Company also issued 35,500 shares of stock to one of its directors during 2001 to personally 
act as a guarantor to certain of the Company's creditors with respect to business expansion 
activities. The fair market value of the shares was $27,475. 

In March 2001, the Company entered into three-year marketing contracts with one of its 
Series B Preferred stockholders. Under the terms of the contracts, 100,000 shares of common 
stock were issued with a fair market value of $125,000. This amount was recorded on the 
balance sheet as a deferred consulting fee and incltlded in operating expenses on a straight-line 
basis over the life of the contracts. D~lring 2001, $39,931 was recorded in promotion expenses as 
a result of this amortization. Consideration granted under the contracts' terms also included 
options to purchase LIP to 150,000 additional shares of common stock at $2.50 per share. These 
options vest gradually over the term of the contract. These options are accotmted for as 
variable plan options since the issuance of these options was ~mder the premise that the grantee 
will be providing c~lrrent and future services for the Company. Accordingly, using the Black- 
Scholes option pricing model, $29,581 in consulting expense was recorded to reflect the vesting 
of these options through December 31,2001. 

(Continued) 
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In August 2000, the Company sold 150,000 shares of common stock to an individual for 
$300,000. The individual also received warrants to plu-chase 200,000 additional shares of 
common stock at $2.00 per share. Proceeds from the sale were allocated between common 
stock and the warrants based on the relative fair values. The estimated fair value of the 
warrants was determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The common stock 
was recorded at $187,199 and the warrants were recorded at $112,801. 

Warrants to Purchase Common Shares: As mentioned above, the Company issued warrants in 
connection with its Series B preferred stock offering and in connection with certain marketing 
contracts. In addition, the Company i s s ~ ~ e d  warrants when it issued and converted certain 
notes payable more fully described in Note 6. 

During 2000, the Company issued warrants in connection with the sale of 150,000 shares of 
common stock as previously described above. The Company also issued 223,082 warrants to 
purchase common shares at prices ranging from $2.00 to $5.13 per share to various outside 
consultants and independent sales agents in exchange for services, which were v a l ~ ~ e d  at 
$473,703. 

During 2001, the Company issued 10,000 warrants to purchase common shares at $2.50 per 
share to independent sales agents, which were valued at $9,236. In addition, the Company 
renegotiated and settled certain terms of an o~~ts ide  consulting contract entered into during 
2000. Under the terms of the settlement, the Company modified the exercise price from $5.00 
per share to $2.50 per share on 50,000 warrants outstanding and issued an additional 15,000 
warrants with an exercise price of $2.50 per share. In connection with the settlement the 
Company recognized $15,696 in expense. 

All of the warrants were exercisable at December 31,2001. The following tables summarize the 
warrant activity for 2001 and 2000: 

Weighted 
Average 

Price Exercise 
Warrants Range Price 

Balance at December 31,1999 125,000 $1.25 $ 1.25 
Issued 4,476,382 $2.00 - $5.13 2.47 

Balance at December 31,2000 4,601,382 $1.25 - $5.13 2.44 
Cancelled or expired (268,000) $2.00 - $5.00 2.60 
Issued 1,012,350 $2.50 2.50 

Balance at December 31,2001 5,345,732 $1.25 - $5.13 2.44 
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Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan: Effective March 11,1999, the Company established the Buyers 
United International, Inc. Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan ("the Stock Plan"). The Stock Plan 
provides for a maximum of 1,200,000 shares of common stock of the Company to be awarded to 
participants and their beneficiaries. A Committee, as determined by the Board of Directors, 
determines and designates the eligible participants and awards to be granted under the Stock 
Plan. The Committee may grant incentive stock options; non-qualified options; stock 
appreciation rights ("SAR); and on a limited basis, stock awards. The tenns and exercise prices of 
options and SARs will be established by the Committee; except that the exercise prices cannot be 
less than 100 percent of the fair market value of a share of common stock on the date of grant. As 
of December 31, 2001, incentive stock options to purchase a total of 794,653 shares of common 
stock had been granted under this particular plan and, of that amount, 256,499 were still 
outstanding. 

Stock Options: - The Company's Board of Directors has from time to time authorized the grant 
of stock options to directors, officers, key employees, and consultants as compensation and in 
connection with obtaining financing. The following tables summarize the option activity for 
2001 and 2000: 

Weighted 
Average 

Price Exercise 
Options Range Price 

Balance at December 31,1999 1,494,838 $2.00 - $9.00 $ 2.40 
Granted 2,026,633 $2.00 - $5.13 2.85 
Cancelled or expired (468,452) $2.00 - $9.00 2.67 

Balance at December 31,2000 3,053,019 $2.00 - $9.00 2.66 
Granted 562,501 $2.50 - $3.50 2.50 
Cancelled or expired (796,935) $2.00 - $5.00 2.41 

Balance at December 31,2001 

(Continued) 
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A summary of the options outstanding and options exercisable at December 31, 2001 is as 
follows: 

Options 
Options Outstandinn - Exercisable 

Average Weighted Options Weighted 
Range of Remaining Average Exercisable at Average 
Exercise Options Contractual Exercise December 31, Exercise 
Prices Outstanding - Life Price Price 

$2.00 - $3.99 $ 2,535,359 4.5 years $ 2.44 $ 2,190,359 $ 2.37 
$4.00 - $5.99 280,726 3.6 years 4.90 280,726 4.90 
$6.00 - $9.00 2,500 0.1 years 9.00 2,500 9.00 

$ 2,818,585 4.4 years $ 2.69 $ 2,473,585 $ 2.67 

Stock-Based Compensation: The Company applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 
25 and related interpretations in accotmting for its grants of options to purchase common 
shares to employees. SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation," requires pro 
forma information regarding net income (loss) as if the Company had accounted for its stock 
options granted under the fair value method of the statement. The fair value of the stock 
options was estimated at the grant date by the Company based on the Black-Scholes option 
pricing model. For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, the following assumptions 
were used in the Black-Scholes model: a weighted-average risk-free interest rate of 2.18% to 
5.39% depending on the grant date, and 6.2'/0, respectively, a dividend yield of 0% and 0%, a 
weighted average volatility of 111% and 104.3%, and weighted-average expected lives of 5.6 
and 5.8 years, respectively. The weighted average fair value of options granted during the 
years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 was $2.51 and $2.66, respectively. The net losses 
applicable to common stockholders under SFAS No. 123 for the years ended December 31,2001 
and 2000 would have been increased to the pro forma amounts indicated below: 

Net loss applicable to common stockholders 
As reported $ (6,827,484) $ (11,608,114) 
Pro forma (7,538,246) (13,526,510) 

Basic and diluted net loss per common share 
As reported $ (1.49) $ (3.12) 
Pro forma (1.64) (3.63) 

The effects of applying SFAS No. 123 are not indicative of future arno~mts. Additional awards 
in future years are anticipated. 
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During 2001 and 2000, certain board members and stockholders performed various services to 
the Company. These services included, but were not limited to, consulting, marketing and 
capital and debt raising activities. The Company incurred $167,000 and $59,400 in fees 
associated with these services for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. 
Amounts outstanding related to these services were $31,300 at December 31,2001. 

During 2000, certain board members made loans to the Company and subsequently exchanged 
their notes for Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and related warrants. The five and two- 
year warrants have an exercise price of $2.50 per share. The total nurnber of warrants issued to 
these board members was 1,030,000 (see Note 9). 

NOTE 11 - MAJOR SUPPLIERS 

Approximately 84% of the Company's cost of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2001 
was generated from three telecommunication providers, and approximately 89% of the 
Company's cost of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2000 was generated from four 
telecommunication providers. As of December 31, 2001, the Company owed approximately 
$1,685,600 to these providers. .The Company has entered into contractual agreements with 
these vendors. 

NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

On June 14,2001, a lawsuit was filed against the Company by Profitec, Inc. ("Profitec") in New 
Haven, Connecticut. Profitec asserted that it agreed to perform certain billing services in 1999 
for the Company's telecommunication members and that the Company agreed to pay Profitec 
for such services. Profitec further claimed that the Company breached the contract by 
terminating the contract and failing to pay fees allocable under a "liquidated damage" provision 
for early termination. Profitec has claimed damages in excess of $140,000, based upon the 
contract's liquidated damage provisions. The Company has retained counsel in New Haven to 
defend this action. The Company's defenses to this matter include the following: that Profitec 
failed to provide the contrachd services in a timely or competent manner; that the Company 
notified Profitec on many occasions that it was not performing in accordance with the terms of 
the contract; that Profitec failed to cure the billing inadequacies and contin~led to deliver a 
billing product that caused the Company to lose members and spend excessive monies to 
correct; that Profitec breached the contract and that the Company followed its remedial course 
set forth in the contract by canceling the contract and obtaining billing services elsewhere; and 
that the liquidated damage provision upon which plaintiff bases its lawsuit is unenforceable. 

(Continued) 
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The Company has filed a general denial answer and has asserted affirmative defenses, 
including breach of contract, failure of consideration, and other issues. The Company has also 
filed a counter claim and has pled for damages based upon the plaint& failure under the 
above-described contract. On November 5, 2001, Profitec answered and denied the counter- 
claim but has never sought discovery. The Company believes that Profitec's claims are without 
merit and is aware of other actions by Profitec against defendants similarly situated as the 
Company. The Company intends to defend the action and pursue its claims against Profitec as 
it deems appropriate. 

The Company is the subject of certain other legal matters, which it considers incidental to its 
b~winess activities. It is the opinion of management, after discussion with legal cotmsel, that 
the ultimate disposition of these legal matters will not have a material impact on the financial 
position, Liquidity, or results of operations of the Company. 

NOTE 13 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Subsequent to December 31, 2001, the Company obtained additional financing of $1,700,000 
through the issuance of promissory notes and warrants. 

The Company also received $100,000 from the issuance of a note payable to a director of the 
Company. The unsecured note bears interest at 12% and is due J d y  5,2003. In connection with 
the issuance of this note, the Company issued 10,000 shares of common stock with a fair market 
value of $10,000. This amount was recorded as a debt financing cost and is being amortized to 
interest expense over the remaining term of the note. 

On January 28,2002, one of the Company's main telecomm~mication providers, as discussed in 
Note 11, filed for bankruptcy protection. Although the Company has not experienced a 
disruption of service and feels that it could replace this company with another 
telecommunications provider, the effect on the Company's operations of potentially losing this 
service provider cannot be determined. 
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Exhibit E 

Sample Bill 



Remittance Section 

14870 South Pony Express Road 
Bluffdale UT 84065 
Address Service Requested 

- 

Bill Period: 04/01/2002 - 04/30/2002 
Invoice Number: 99930023 
Member Number: 1947437 
Due Date: 05/25/2002 
Total Due: $6.32 
Amount Enclosed: $ 
Unpaid balance is subject to a 1.5% finance charge per month. 
Please make checks payable to Guyelsonllne 
n Check hara far changa of address I see r e v e l  se fo r  deta~ls) 

X DFDF 
XX 
X 
X NY 33333 

Please detach and return above portion with your payment 

Invoice Information 

Bill Period: 04/01/2002 - 04/30/2002 
Due Date: 05/25/2002 
Invoice Number: 99930023 
Member Number: 1947437 

Summary of Charges 

Balance Information 
Previous Balance 
Payments Received - Thank You 

Past Due Balance 

New Charges 
New Usage Charges 
Recurring Charges 
Taxes and Surcharges 

Total New Charges 
Total Amount Due 

Payment Center 
P.O. Box 30701 
Salt Lake City UT 841 30-0701 

buyers 
Helping you zero-out monthly bdls 

FREE Subscri~tion - - - - - 
We have arranged for a FREE annual subscription to - 
Travel America Magazine for you! This is just - - - 
another benefit for being a member of Buyersonline. 
Thank you for your business. - 



HAVEYOU MOVED OR CHANGEDYOUR PHONE NUMBER? 
Please provide your new address or telephone number and remit this portion with your payment. Your records will be updated upon request. 

Effective Date: Account Name: 

New Address: City: State: Zip: 

Home Number: Work Number: Signature: 

WE ACCEPTTHE FOLLOWING CREDIT CARDS FOR PAYMENT: 

Monthly Recurring One-Time only 

Card Number: Expiration Date: 

Billing Address: City: State: Zip: 

Amount Authorized: $ Signature: 

If you wish to pay by phone, please contact us at 1-800-363-61 77 

HOW TO READ YOUR BILL 

,. . ,,, 5 C. B ~ I  ~mutl: OIIO~ROOZ -01131~ooz buyers ;i iz;z.c$ InVO~CB  numb^^. FH172227 
Helefng ya:Pm.oufmonln~hlllr Member Number: 672198 

~rarosmn ~ m r  &pair nrm OMj.2002 
mdmnr arrnrm s = Y j - s  .- 
Ram.. SCNICC RPq"C.m* s- 

Unramc balanca ~msub lm lo a 1.5% linanol charge psr rnonVi. 
Ploasemaio C ~ C X S  payable ID 

cnntk hwe lor chang. 01 

6111 Perk4 oiiuiaoon - oicrinooz b ~ y e ~ ~ ~ ; ~ ~ ~ , ; ~ ~  .. . ... , 
DUB DaIa' 0212512002 
~ W O ~ E B  NUmbef: 9967222i 
Irlemoer Number: 672198 

ATTENTlONl 

5umm;iryolCl iarges 

Bslanse Informalion 
PI~VIOUS Bsllince $OM 66 
P~ymenls Received -Thank You IS424 171 

P ~ S ~ D Y C  ealancc $040.51 

Now Charges 
Adpslmem~ (530.161 
New Usage Charges 531505 
Recurring Charges 559 25 
Taxes end Surcharges Sd2 6d 

Total NBW Chlrges 1416.94 
Total Amount oua 582729 

Not~ce anylhing different abaut your bill7 
BuyersOnline is happy lo unveil the new and 
lmoroved b~ll. Besides no ionusr being blue, tna 
new format makes it aasier lo-raad sna undersland 
your bill. From charges to adjustments you will 
slways understand what is happening with your 
accaunr. If vou have ousstions about where to find 
someth~no look on th; next naoe and there w~ll  ba 
exelanatl& for each item. ~ls"o notice the 
psiforsled payrnenl stub Is now located at the top of 
your bill. If you typical! racieve a check from 
Buya~Online it will noYongsr be allached lo your 
statement, nut printed separately. 

Questions? 
Our Member Services are here t o  h e l ~ !  

Call: 1-800-363-61 77 

Invoice Number - A  unique number which aids in 
identifying your invoice. 

Member Number - Your member number. It will 
be helpful to have this number when calling 
customer service. 

Due Date- Bill must be paid before the Due Date 
to avoid a late fee charge. 

Amount Enclosed - Please indicate the payment 
amount included with your remittance. 

Balance Information - Prior month bill charges 
and payments. 

Past Due Balance - Reflects the difference 
between prior months charges and any payments 
or late charges. 

New Charges - Monthly recurring charges for 
service. 

Taxes and Surcharges - Total taxes and 
surcharges that have been applied to your bill. 

Total New Charges - The total of this months 
current activity. 

Total Amount Due - Current charges plus any 
remaining prior bill charges. 

Remittance Address - Send your payment to this 
address with your remittance slip for proper credit 
to your account. 

Important Messages 



Member Number Bill Period Invoice Number 

x dfdf 
XX 
X 
x NY 33333 
Account Number 1947437 

Detail of New Charqes 

# of Calls Minutes Charges 

New Usage Charges 
Equal Access (1 +) 

Domestic I + Interstate 
Total Equal Access (1 +) 

Total New Usage 

Recurring Charges 
Account Charges 

1 -Agent: $2.50 if usage < $30 
1 - Agent: $2.50 ii usage < $30 

Total Account Charges 

Total Recurring Charges $5.00 

Taxes 
Telecommunications Excise Tax Surcharge 
Universal Service 
NY State Sales Tax 
Federal Excise Tax 

Total Taxes 

Manaqement Reports 
Line Summary 

Phone Numbers 
(91 4) 963-1 255 
Totals 

Calls Minutes Cost 
1 25.2 $1.1265 
1 25.0 $1.1265 

Eaual Access ( A  +) 
- -- 

Date Time R Nlin Called # Location Cost 

1 Call 25.2 for (914) 963-1255 $1 .I265 

1 Call 25.2 for Equal Access (I+) $1 .I265 

Credit Summary 
Online Purchase Credits 
Referral Rebates 
Fast Cash 

Total New Credits 



Exhibit F 

Welcome Kit 





and only $1 per month with a one time $2 set-up fe 

b Calling Cards 
  as^ touse,with no monthlyfee or minimums and a low per minute rate 
for continental US. calls. In most cases, better international rates than 
Direct Dial (1 +). 

About vow Lona Distance Service: 
b If you would like to confirm your long distance has been switched to 

BuyersOnline, dial l-7OO-SSS-4l4l from the line(s) to be switched. You will hear 
a welcome recording from Global Crossing or Qwest if the switch is completed. 

b If there is a restriction at your local carrier, BuyersOnline will contact you 
with the information needed to complete the switch. 

b Depending on where you live, your local phone company may not provide 
service for all of your intrastate long distance calls. In these cases, 
BuyersOnline will automatically provide this service for you. 

b Warning - International calls may be charged a higher rate based on the 
country and number you are dialing. These calls are listed on your monthly bill 
as Special,AudioText or Mobile. These rates and codes can be accessed on our 
web site under Long Distance Plan Details, 
or you can contact Member Services at buyersa&e 
1-800-363-61 77. Helping you zero-out monthly bills 



Long Distance Services - FYI 
LONG DISTANCE RATES: Buyersonline's rates are subject to ~ h a n ' ~ e  i i thout  prior 
notification. Please see our web site for the most current rates. 
AVOID SLAMMING: Place a restriction on each of your lines at yo'ur local phone company so 
your lines cannot be moved to another carrier without your authorization.This is called a 
"PIC Freeze". 
CHANGESTO YOUR ACCOUNT: It is important to contact us with any changes to your 
account. This includes address changes, contact information or any new phone lines you 
wish to service. By doing this we can make sure your new service can be up and running 
as soon as possible. 
TEST BEFORE YOU PUBLISH YOUR NUMBER: Please do not print new toll-free numbers on 
marketing literature until you have tested them and verified that they work. BuyersOnline is 
not liable for marketing or related expenses incurred as a result of service outages. 
UNAUTHORIZED CALLS: You are responsible for charges accrued by all calls made from . .* 

yourtelephone (including 900 #s) and to yourtoll-free lines.You may want to use 'account 
codes' if unauthorized calls are being made. 
BILLING DISCREPENCIES: If you have any questions or discrepencies on your monthly bill, 
you have 30 days to dispute the charges to your account. 
LIABILITY: BuyersOnline is not responsible or liable for service outages. 
RATES ROUND UP: Per-minute rates are rounded up to the nearest penny. 
PAY PHONE CHARGES: Laws have been passed that allow pay phone owners to pass on a 
30t charge on all calls made using toll-free numbers or calling cards. 
BUSINESS PICC FEES: If you have a Business Line (Designated by your Local Carrier),there 
may be a fee on your bill that will read 'FCC PICC'. It is a monthly fee passed on from the 
local carrier to connect your long distance (law passed in January 1998). Business accounts 
with only a single line will not be charged the fee. The fee only applies to accounts with 
multiple lines. 
FEDERAL UNIVERSAL SERVICE FUND: The tax on your bill that says 'Universal Service Fund 
Charges' was also passed in January 1998 and is a federal tax that is charged to assist 
hospitals and libraries in receiving Internet access and is roughly 9.7% of your long distance 
usage. 
IN-STATE DIAL-AROUND CODES: Some states (non-equal access states) require a seven- 
digit access code or a 'dial-around' code for in-state rates. Please call customer service to 
find out if you need this code in your state and to determine what your state code is. 

13. ALASKA & HAWAII: BuyersOnline currently does not offer service in Alaska or Hawaii.You 
can call to those locations, and you can accept toll-free calls from those locations, but we 
currently do not offer membership outside of the continental United States. 

14. INTERNATIONAL CALLING: BuyersOnline currently offers great international rates anywhere 
in the world through the standard 01 1 international dialing code. Often by using our 
Calling Card, you may find that international rates are significantly lower. Calling cards may 
not be used to call from international locations, except from U.S.Virgin Islands and Puerto 
Rico. Toll-free numbers may be set up to accept calls from Canada. Rates to international 
mobile phones and AudioText Lines can be billed at a significantly higher rate. 

15: INTRASTATEIINTRA-LATA CALLING: Many new members are surprised that in-state calls are 
billed at a different/higher rate. In-state rates vary by state, and are dramatically affected by 
local taxes and state fees. Most states are even divided by local calling regions (LATA), and 
depending on the state you live in,there are two kinds of in-state calls;those that are made 
within your LATA and those that are made from your LATA to another within your state. 
By switching your state-to-state long distance to BuyersOnline, your LATA-to-LATA calls will 
also be switched, and you will be charged our in-state rate. In most cases, we can also 
switch your service so that calls made within your LATA are billed by BuyersOnline. Please 
let us know if you would like us to handle these calls as well. 

16: CANCELING MEMBERSHIP: If you decide to cancel your Membership, you must inform 
BuyersOnline so that we can deactivate your acount. If not,you may continue to accrue 
service charges. 

17: PRIVACY: In order to administer our Referral Rebate program, your monthly billing amount 
will be known by the person or entity that referred you. If you wish to keep this 
information private you may cancel your service with BuyersOnline. 



-. 
"We receive between $300 & 
$500 a month in rebate checks!" 
- Julie Osborne - Member 4 years 

Referrinq Friends And Fami/y 1s As Easy As 7-2-3 
Think of a friend that likes to save money 

Give them your Member number 

Have them call Member Services at 1-800-363-6 177 

We do the rest. It's a quick and easy way to zero-out your monthly bills! 
Your rebates will be credited to your monthly statement. 

A Bonus For Your First Referral 
Our "JustTell One" program gives you a bonus on 
your very first referral. See the enclosed "Just Tell One" 
insert for current program details. 

buyersonline Helptng YOU zero-out monthly bills 



Referral Rebates -Terms and Conditions n o  d 

The agency or organization you are enrolling through has designed their offering to include the opportunityfor you to refer 
other individuals or organizations and receive referral rebates to wipe out the cost of your own monthly bills. As a "Refemng 
Member:' it is your responsibility to read and understand the Referral ProgramTerms and Condions.By enrolling as a member 
in the Referral Program,you agree to be bound by th~eTerms and Conditions in their entirety. Buyersonline (BOL) has the right 1 
to chanae these Terms and Conditions in whole or ~n Dart at anv time with or without notice Please read the most current I 

'~eferralProgramTerms and Conditions' on our web site at: httpJ/~~buyersonline.com/memberbene~s. ELlGlBlUTY AND 
ACCEPTABLE USEYou must be at least 18 years old and of legal age in your state of residence to be a member of BOL and 
oarticioate in the Referral Proqram.You may maintain onlv one account Anv duolicate accounts will be subiect to cancellation. i 
Furthermore, any attem ts t5 duplicate, dr de'aud the Pro ram at all iriciudin but not limited to thrbugh the usage of 
automated services,dupicate or secondary email accounts or h e  names will r e d  in termination from the Referral Program. If 
a member loses membership, they cannot rejoin BOL for a minimum of six months. BOL reserves the right to refuse 
membership or services to any applicant for any reason. SPONSORS A sponsor is a member of BOLwho refers others to join. 
Members may choose whom they sponsor and who sponsors them, but once chosen, a sponsor cannot be changed. A 1 member cannot change sponsors on their own unless they terminate their membership for at least six months and then rejoins 
rhe Referral Program. Members may not sponsorthemselves. Individuals or business entities may only join one time; however,a 
Member may sponsor any legally recognized business that they own. The legally recognized entity must have a separate tax ID 
number from the soonsorins entity. Businesses mav also sponsor multiole locations or offices beneath a central office. 
Membership is available to in&viduals,couples, partnerihips, Ups or corporations. A correct and unique social security ortax ID 
number is required to differentiate accounts and receive Referral Rebates. However, a separate address per service location 
qualifies as grounds for a separate membership account even though the tax ID ma be the same for all locations. MARKmNG 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS The Member agrees not to use services provided by &e Company in a manner inconsistent with 
the terms and conditions of the Company'slntemet service. Further, the Member agreesnoito use the Company's services, 
name. trademarks or other intellectual ornoem or cause to be used the Cornoanvs eauioment network caoacitv or other 
resouices in conjunction with the oriqination,delivery,relay ortransmittal of unsolicit6d email("spam) either directly 6rthrouqh 
the use of any other provider, third-Fa agent re-mailing service or address forwarding serv'ice. Use or modifibtion of the 
Comoanv's intellectual orooertv in anv%rm, includina but not limited to use on anv other web site or networked comouter 
enviionhent, without &pr& h i e n  Quthorization is: violation of BOL's copyrights Qnd other proprietary rights and is &ctly 
prohibited. If a Member creates a marketing tool, it is their responsibility to use the most current rates and most current 
company and program details available. To receive express authorization to use a personal marketing tool, a Member must 
emall .jpg images to BOL at "marketingapproval@buyersonline.com". Refusal to abide by these or any other rules will result in 
the cancellation of the Member's account the forfeiture of accumulated rebates and accumulated refenal bonuses, and the 
:evering of any Referral tree established by the Member. Reports of "spamming" or similar inappropriate behavior such as 
slammino" or ''fax broadcastinan should be re~orted to "consumerrelations@buversonline.com". REFERRALS Members are 

qualified fo refer once their apijlication has been received and approved by both Member Services and the Member Credit 
Department The company checks credit of member applicants. Applicants who do not want a aedit check must offer a secure 
form of oavment (acceotable credit card). A social securitv or tax ID number is reauired to comolete all membershio 
applicati% regardless df method of payment Members are 'independent Members'. They are not independent contractor;, 
franchisees,agents em loyees or partners of the Company and may not state or imply any such relationship. Members should 
not represent themsek as an office or affiliate of the Company. Members may not represent or bind the Campany to 
contracts or agreements other than those in the membership application. Members should not make claims forspecificsav~ngs 
or income to prospective members. Members, who are found responsible for misrepresenting the Company, will be 
immediately terminated. NONTRANSFERABILITY No rebates earned or granted underthe Referral Program may be assigned 
ortransferred to an third party except as expressly permitted by BOL in writing.Thesale or barter of any such rebate,otherthan 
by BOL is express& prohibited. Accrued rebates do not constitute property and are not transferable. Any violator of the 
foregoing restriction is subject to account termination, forfeiture of accrued rebates andlor liability for damages and litigation 
and transaction costs. DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNT INFORMATION You authorize BOL to disclose to third parties information 
you have provided, or information that BOL has obtained about your membership account: (i) to agents of BOL or its affiliates, 
such as independent auditors,consultants or attomeys;(ii) to corn ly with government agency or court orders or requests or (iii) 
where it is necessary for redemption ortransfer of your rebates. grther, you authorize BOL to receive any account information 
from any Affiliate Merchant including, but not limited to information regarding the Qualified Purchase such as the products 
ordered, the order number, the time and date the Qualified Purchase occurred, the email address entered for the Qualified 
Purchase.You aqree to hold the Affiliated Merchant harmless for any information disclosed to BOL DISCLAIMER The BOL 
Referral Program is being provided to member "as is" with no warrant$To the maximum extent permitted by law, BOLdisdaims 
all representations and warranties, express or implied, with respect to the Referral Program,including but not limited to,implied 
warranties of merchantabilitv and fitness for anv particular ouroose and imolied warranties arisina from course of dealina or 
course of performance. BOi does not warrant guarantee o i  make any representations regarding &e quality of, or accuracy of 
advertisements for, any merchandise, producis or services offered or provided by affiliated meichanis or suppliers in 
coniunction with the Referral Proqram.In addition,althouqh BOL intends to take reasonable aeos to orevent the introduction 
of viruses or other destructive makials to the BOL web si&, BOL does not warrant guarantee or makeany representationsthat 
this site is free of destructive materials. In addition, BOL does not warrant that access to this site will be uninterrupted or error- 
free,and BOL assumes no responsibilityfor any damavused by your access,or inability to access,this site.lncluding, but not 
limited to, your inability to accrue rebates by purchasmg items with an affiliated merchant LlMlTATlON OF UABILKY In no 
event will-any other company with which BOL has a corporate partnering relationship, including without limitation, co- 
brandina.co-marketinaioint develooment,a merchant relationshio or a suoolier relationshio (each a "cornorate oartidoant') be 
liable toyou for non-pXormance o'f BOCiobligations.You agree not to sue any corporatebarticipant for non-derforriance by 
BOL In no event shall BOL be liable for any dama es, claims or losses incurred (including without limitation compensatorj, 
incidentaLindired soedal. conseauential or exemoqarv damaaesl. however caused and under anv theorv of liabilitv arisina in . 
connection with: (i) ihe Referral Piogram; (ii) any fdilur6,delay or decision by BOL in administerinqihe ~ef'erral ~roqkm; (iii)The 
use or inability to use this web site; or (iv) the purchase or use of any merchandise, producE, or services of merchants or 
suooliers, even if BOL, or reoresentatives thereof. are advised of the oossibilitv of such damaoes. claims. or losses and 
nothithshnding any failure of essential purpose of any limited remedy. DISPUTESIERRORS -~ll'~uestions or disputes 
regarding the Referral Program,including without limitation,questions or disputes regarding eligibility forthe Referral Program, 
orthe eligibility of rebatesfor accrual or redem tion, must be submitted in writing within 60 days of the qualifying transaction, 
to Buyersonline, 14870 5. Pony Express Rd., BlJdale, UT 84065, or email us at consumerrelations@buyersonline.com. An such 
disputes shall be resolved by BOL at its sole discretion.All interpretations of Referral Program Terms and Conditions shaKbe at 
thesole discretion of BOL 
Attention: The most current 'Referral ProgramTermsand Conditions' are available on our web site at: 
http://www.buye~online.comlmemberben&. 



'9 was able to zero-out my phone 
bill from the purchases I've made 
through BuyersOn lin e!" 
- Marla Goode - Member 3 years 

Earninq Shopping Rebates is as easy as 7-2-3 

Enter the shopping area at www. buyersonline. corn 

Select a store 

Sign in and start shopping 

Follow these simple steps and your rebates will be credited to 
your monthly Buyersonline statement. 

buyersonline Helping YOU zero-OU~ monthly bills 



Shopping Rebates -Terms and Conditions , - , :  = 
To be eligible to participate in the BuyersOnline Shopping Rebate program, you must first be a member of 
BuyersOnline. A member must be at least 18-years years of age. BuyersOnline reserves the right to change 
the Shopping Rebate percentages without notice,for any reason. Members receive their Shopping Rebates 1 
as long as their personal account is paid in full within thirty (30) days of the bill date indicated on the 
Monthly Statement. 
1. I understand that participation in any BuyersOnline incentive program(s) constitutes agreement to these 

terms and conditions. 
2.You will be credited, subject to the terms and conditions enumerated in this Agreement, a percentage of 

the net purchases made by you at one of the online merchants affiliated with the Company's rebate 
program (an "Affiliated Merchantm).The percentage will be enumerated on the BuyersOnline web site as it 
relates to each Affiliated Merchant.The net purchase is defined as the total amount paid to the merchant 
minus tax, gift wrapping, shipping, promotional credits, returns, cancellations and transaction fees or as 
the Affiliated Merchant defines on their respective Web site and as is enumerated in their respective 
Affiliate Membership and/or Operating Agreement document, whichever is less. All ~ffiliat6d Merchant 
Membership and/or Operating Agreements as they relate to their affiliate or partner programs with the 
Company and which reside on the Affiliated Merchant's respective web sites are hereby incorporated into 
this Agreement by reference. 

3.The determination of whether or not a purchase made through the Company's Affiliated Merchant is a 
"Qualified Purchase" is at the sole discretion of BuyersOnline. 

4. Rebates awarded to Members are subject to adjustments for returns, cancellations and other events. Such 
adjustments can be applied to Member accounts at any time by BuyersOnline at i t s  sole discretion. 
Should you disagree with any adjustments made to your account, your sole remedy is to withdraw from 
the Program. 

5. Members are responsible for all state and federal taxes that are due and payable as a result of receiving 
any and all rebates from the Program. You may be taxed on your accrual of rebates, depending on the 
amount of rebates you accrue and the tax laws of federal, state, and local jurisdictions. BuyersOnline will 
provide you with those notices and forms required by law, but you will be responsible for any and all tax 
liability arising out of your accrual or redemption of rebates. 

6.You will be credited the full amount of the rebate which we receive from the Affiliated Merchant subject to 
the following exceptions: 1) In the case that an Affiliated Merchant pays the Company a different 
percentage of the net purchase price based upon the aggregate net purchases made during a finite 
period of time delineated by the Affiliated Merchant, the Member will receive the lowest amount on that 
sliding scale due to the current inability to track aggregate sales. At this time, only a handful of Affiliated 
Merchants implement this sliding scale rebate structure. 2) Should the Affiliated Merchant withhold a 
portion of your rebate for any reason whatsoever, the Company will withhold the exact same amount 
from your rebate for the Qualified Purchase. 

7.The following purchases are not eligible for accrual or payment of rebates: All merchants: Gift certificates 
are not eligible for to earn rebates; Beyond.com: Purchases of gift certificates and coupons are not eligible 
to earn rebates; Beyond.com: Hardware purchases are not eligible for rebates; Dell Computers: Any 
purchase of Dell products and services in which the transaction is substantially completed by telephone 
or a Dell sales person receives commission for the sale. 

8.k is your responsibility to check your account regularly to ensure that rebates have been properly credited 
and that your account balance is accurate.The Member must inform BuyersOnline of any rebates that the 
Member believes they are entitled to within 30 days of the Member's claim of a valid Qualifying Purchase. 
Furthermore, all rebates earned by Members are subject to review. Necessary adjustments may be 
applied to Member accounts at any time by the Company at its sole discretion. If you do not agree to 
adjustments made to your account, your only recourse will be to terminate your membership in the 
Program. BuyersOnline reserves the right to terminate any account for abusive or fraudulent activity or if 
the Member is no longer reachable at the email address provided. If you make no transactions that 
update your rebates account for any consecutive twelve-month period, your account is designated as 
"abandoned." Abandoned accounts are automatically closed and forfeit any existing balance to 
BuyersOnline. 

9. BuyersOnline is not responsible for changes to, or discontinuance of, any Affiliated Merchant, or any 
Affiliated Merchant withdrawal from the Program or for any effect on accrual of rebates caused by such 
changes, discontinuance or withdrawal. 

10. BuyersOnline shall not be held responsible or liable for any actions taken, either wholly or in part, based 
on the information provided on BuyersOnline.com, or for any loss, damage, expense or injury resulting 
from any transactions conducted with any online merchant or other third party listed on 
BuyersOnline.com. Including, but not limited to exchanges, returns, refunds or damaged goods. 
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September 23,2002 

J 

Mr. William Bullard, Jr. 
Executive Director 
South Dakota Public Utilities Commission 
500 East Capitol 
Pierre, South Dakota 5750 1 

901 N Brutscher, D 358 
Newberg, OR 97132 

RE: Buyers United, Inc. Proposed Tariff 

Dear Mr. Bullard, Jr. 

Enclosed please find an original and three copies of Buyers United, Inc. 's 
proposed intrastate tariff. Under the advice of Kelly Frasier, we have listed the tariff 
issued date as "September 24,2002" and the effective date as "upon approval." The 
following pages are included in this filing: 

Page Revision 
1-18 Original 

If there are any additional requirements under the Commissions' rules and 
regulations, please contact me directly at 801-558-8149 or via e-mail at 
lia(~capitol~iiicons~~i~ing.con~. 

Please acknowledge receipt of this filing by returning a date stamped copy of this 
cover letter, in the postage paid envelope, provided. 

Thank you for your assistance. 

Sincerely, 
Capitol Hill Consulting, LLC 

~ e ~ u h d o r ~  Affairs Consultant 
for Buyers United Inc. 

801.558.8149 tel - 801.406.0261 fax 
~~~~v~~.ca~~~tohillconsulting cmn 
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Buyers United, Inc. 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS TARIFF 

This tariff contains the rates, terms and conditions applicable to the Intrastate Resale 
Telecommunications Services provided by Buyers United, Inc. within the State of 
South Dakota. 
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CHECK SHEET 

Pages of this tariff, as indicated below, are effective as of the date shown at the bottom of the 
respective pages. Original and revised pages, as named below, comprise all changes fiom the 
original tariff and are currently in effect as of the date on the bottom of this page. 
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SYMBOLS 

The following are the only symbols used for the purposes indicated below: 

(C) - Change in Rule or Regulation. 

(D) - Delete or discontinue. 

(I) - Change Resulting in an increase to a customer's bill. 

(M) - Moved fiom another tariff location. 

(N) - New 

(It) - Change resulting in a reduction to a customer's bill. 

(T) - Change in text or regulation. 
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SECTION 1.0 - TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

Access Line - An arrangement which connects the Subscriber's or Customer's location to the 
Carrier's designated point of presence or network switching center. 

Authorized User - A person, firmor corporation, or any other entity authorized by the Customer or 
Subscriber to communicate utilizing the Company's services. 

Carrier or Company - Buyers United, Inc. unless otherwise indicated by the context. 

Customer - The person, firm or corporation, or other entity which orders, cancels, amends, or uses 
service and is responsible for the payment of charges and/or compliance with tariff regulations. 

Customer Premises Equipment - Terminal equipment, as defined herein, which is located on the 
Customer's premises. 

Dedicated Access - See Special Access Origination/Termination. 

Holiday - One of the following federally recognized holidays: New Year's Day (January I), 
Independence Day (July 4), Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day (December 25). 

SDPUC - Refers to the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission. 

Special Access OriginationlTermination - Where originating or terminating access between the 
Customer and the interexchange carrier is provided on dedicated circuits. The Access Provider 
provides these dedicated circuits from the Customer's location to the Company's point ofpresence. 
The rates and charges for dedicated circuits are determined by the Access Provider and the Customer 
is responsible for payment of these charges to the Access Provider. 

Subscriber - The person, firm, corporation, or other legal entity, which arranges for services ofthe 
Company on behalf of itself or Authorized Users. The Subscriber is responsible for compliance with 
the terms and conditions of this tariff. A Subscriber may also be a Customer when the Subscriber 
uses services of the Company. 

Switched Access OriginatiodTermination - Where originating or terminating access betweenthe 
Customer and the interexchange carrier is provided on Feature Group circuits. 

Terminal Equipment - Devices, apparatus, and associated wiring, such as teleprinters, telephones, 
or data sets. 
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SECTION 2.4) - RULES AND REGULATIONS 

2.1 Undertaking of the Company 

Buyers United, Inc. offers intrastate service originating at specified points within the state of 
South Dakota under terms of this tariff. The Company's services and resold facilities are 
provided on a monthly basis unless otherwise provided, and are available twenty-four hours 
per day, seven days per week. 

The Company installs, operates, and maintains the communications servicesprovided herein 
under in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth under this tariff. The Company 
may act as the Subscriber's agent for ordering access connection facilities provided by other 
carriers or entities, when authorized by the Subscriber, to allow connection of a Subscriber's 
location to the Company's network. The Subscriber shall be responsible for all charges due 
for such service arrangement. 

2.2 Limitations 

2.2.1 Service is offered subject to the availability of the necessary resold facilities and 
equipment, or both facilities and equipment, and subject to the provisions of this 
tariff. 

2.2.2 The Company reserves the right to discontinue or limit service when necessitated by 
conditions beyond its control, or when the Subscriber or Customer is using service in 
violation of provisions of this tariff, or in violation of the law. 

2.2.3 The Company does not undertake to transmit messages, but offers the use of its 
facilities when available, and will not be liable for errors in transmission or for 
failure to establish connections. 

2.2.4 All services and resold facilities provided under this tariff are directly or indirectly 
controlled by the Company and the Subscriber may not transfer or assign the use of 
service or facilities without the express written consent of the Company. Such 
transfer or assignment shall only apply where there is no interruption of the use or 
location of the service or facilities. 

2.2.5 Prior written permission fiom the Company is required before any assignment or 
transfer. All regulations and conditions contained in this tariff shall apply to all such 
permitted assignees or transferees, as well as all conditions of service. 
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SECTION 2.0 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONT'D.) 

2.3 Use 

Services provided under this tariff may be used for any lawful purpose for which the service 
is technically suited. 

2.4 Liabilities of the Company 

The Company's liability for damages arising out of mistakes, interruptions, 
omissions, delays, errors, or defects in transmission which occur in the course of 
furnishing service or facilities, shall be determined in accordance with SDCL 49-13- 
1 and 49-13- 1.1 and any other applicable law. 

The Company shall not be liable for claim or loss, expense or damage (including 
indirect, special or consequential damage), for any interruption, delay, error, 
omission, or defect in any service, facility or transmission provided under this tar% 
if caused by any person or entity other than the Company, by any malfunction of any 
service or facility provided by any other carrier, by an act of God, fire, war, civil 
disturbance, or act of government, or by any other cause beyond the Company's 
direct control. 

The Company shall not be liable for, and shall be fully indemnified and held 
harmless by Customer and Subscriber against any claim or loss, expense, or damage 
(including indirect, special or consequential damage) for defamation, libel, slander, 
invasion, hfiingement of copy-right or patent, unauthorized use of any trademark, 
trade name or service mark, unfair competition, interference with or misappropriation 
or violation of any contract, proprietary or creative right, or any other injury to any 
person, property or entity arising out of the material, data, information, or other 
content revealed to , transmitted, or used by the Company under this tariff; or for any 
act or omission of the Customer or Subscriber; or for any personal injury or death of 
any person caused directly or indirectly by the installation, maintenance, location, 
condition, operation, failure, presence, use or removal of equipment or wiring 
provided by the Company, if not directly caused by negligence of the Company. 

The Company shall not be liable for any defacement of or damages to the premises 
of a Subscriber resulting fiomthe furnishing of service, which is not the direct result 
of the Company's negligence. 
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SECTION 2.0 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONT'D.) 

2.5 Taxes 

All state and local taxes (i.e., gross receipts tax, sales tax, municipalutilities tax) are listedas 
separate line items and are not included in the quoted rates. 

2.6 Terminal Equipment 

The Company's facilities and service may be used with or terminated in Subscriber-provided 
terminal equipment or Subscriber-provided communications systems, such as a PBX or Pay 
Telephone. Such terminal equipment shall be furnished and maintained at the expense ofthe 
Subscriber, except as otherwise provided. The Subscriber is responsible for all costs at his or 
her premises, including personnel, wiring, electrical power, and the like, incurred in the use 
of the Company 's service. When such terminal equipment is used, the equipment shall 
comply with the generally accepted minimum protective criteria standards of the 
telecommunications industry as endorsed by the Federal Communications Commission. 

2.7 Installation and Termination 

Service is installed upon mutual agreement between the Subscriber and the Company. The 
agreement will determine terms and conditions of installation, termination of service, any 
applicable sales commission structure, and sales commission payment schedule. The service 
agreement does not alter rates specified in this tariff. 

When Customers are members ofthe transient public, they do not contract directly with the 
Company for provision of service. Subscribers contract for service on behalf of themselves 
andlor their transient patrons. Service provided to Customers (patrons of the contracting 
party) is governed by the terms of this tariff schedule and the l a d l  terms of the billing 
agency. No contractual agreements are required of the Customer. 
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SECTION 2.0 - RULES ANIP REGULATIONS, (CONT'D.) 

2.8 Cancellation by the Company 

Without incurring liability, the Company may immediately discontinue services to a 
Subscriber or End User or may withhold the provision of ordered or contracted services: 

2.8.1 For nonpayment of any sum due for more than thirty days afier issuance of the bill 
for the amount due, 

2.8.2 For violation of any of the provisions of this tariff, 

2.8.3 For violation of any law, rule, regulation or policy of any governing authority having 
jurisdiction over the Company 's services, or 

2.8.4 By reason of any order or decision of a court, public service commission or federal 
regulatory body or other governing authority prohibiting the Company fiom 
furnishing its services. 

2.9 Interruption of Service by the Company 

Without incurring liability, the Company may interrupt the provision of services at any time 
in order to perform tests and inspections to assure compliance with tariffregulations and the 
proper installation and operation of subscriber and the Company 's equipment and facilities 
and may continue such interruption until any items of non-compliance or improper 
equipment operation so identified are rectified. 

The Company may discontinue Service without notice to the subscriber, by blocking trslffic 
to certain countries, cities, or NXX exchanges, or by blocking calls using certain customer 
authorization codes, when the Company deems it necessary to take such action to prevent 
un1awfi.d use of its service. The Company will restore service as soon as it can be provided 
without undue risk, and will, upon request by the customer affected, assign a new 
authorization code to replace the one that has been deactivated. 

2.10 Termination of Service by Subscriber 

Unless otherwise specified by contractual commitment, any Subscriber may terminate 
service with the Company upon thirty days written notice. 
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SECTION 2.0 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONT'D.) 

2.11 Payment for Service 

All charges due by the Customer are payable to any agency duly authorized to receive such 
payments. The billing agency may be a local exchange telephone company, credit card 
company, or other billing service. Terms of payment shall be according to the rules and 
regulations of the agency and subject to the rules of regulatory agencies, such as the South 
Dakota PUC. Any objections to billed charges must be promptly reported to the Company's 
billing agent. Adjustments to Customer's bills shall be made to the extent that circumstances 
exist which reasonably indicate that such changes are appropriate. 

Customer inquiries regarding service or billing may be made in writing or by call the toll fiee 
number listed below: 

Kimm Partridge 
14870 S. Pony Express Rd. 
Bluffdale, UT 84065 
800 363-6177 
kiinm.pal-tridgei~b~~yoi~~c.co~x 

Customers who are dissatisfied with the response to their complaint may contact the South 
Dakota Public Utilities Commission for resolution of the issues at the following address: 

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission 
500 East Capitol 
Pierre, South Dakota 5750 1 
(605) 773-3201 
(800) 332-1782 
TTY through Relay South Dakota 800-877-1 113 
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SECTION 2.0 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONTqD.) 

2.12 Other Rules 

2.12.1 Regulatory Changes 

The Company reserves the right to discontinue service, limit service, or to impose 
requirements on Subscribers as required to meet changing regulatory rules and 
standards of the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission and the Federal 
Communications Commission. 

2.12.2 Refunds or Credits for Service Outages or Deficiencies 

Credit allowances for interruptions of service caused by service outages or 
deficiencies are limited to the initial minimum period call charges for re-establishing 
the interrupted call. 

2.13 800 Numbers 

2.13.1 The Company will make every effort to reserve "800" vanity numbers on behalf of 
customers, but makes no guarantee or warrantee that the requested "800" number(s) 
will be available or assigned to the customer requesting the number. 

2.13.2 If a Customer accumulates undisputed past-due charges, the Company reserves the 
right not to honor the Customer's request for a change in 800 service to another 
carrier (e.g., "porting" of the 800 number), including a request for a Responsible 
Organization (Resp Org) change, until such time as all charges are paid in full. 

2.13.3 800 numbers shared by more than one Customer, whereby individual customers are 
identified by a unique Personal Identification Number, may not be assigned or 
transferred for use with service provided by another carrier. Subject to the 
limitations provided in SECTION 2.0.14.2, the Company will only honor Customer 
requests for change in Resp Org or 800 service provider for 800 numbers dedicated 
to the sole use of that single Customer. 
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SECTION 3.0 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES 

3.1 General Description of Rates and Charges 

3.1.1 Application of Charges 

Long Distance Communications Service includes recurring and nonrecurring charges. 
Stabilized recurring charges may be offered on a Customer specific basis where service 
demands or competitive necessity justify such charges. Recurring charges consist of flat- 
rated monthly and usage-sensitive charges. Service also may include a Minimum Charge. 
Nonrecurring charges for installation of a service and additions to service, as well as a 
Termination Charge and Cancellation Charge, are also included. 

(a) Non-Recurring Charges: Non-Recurring Charges are billed in advance. 

(b) Recurring Charges: Recurring Charges, including usage-sensitive charges, are 
billed in arrears. 

3.1.2 Taxes 

The Customer will be billed for, and is responsible for payment of any taxes, surcharges, fees 
or assessments (excluding taxes on the Company's net income) imposed on or based upon 
provision, sale or use of the Company's services. 

3.1.2.1 Jurisdiction 

When the location of the calling and the called stations is a factor in rate 
determination, the rate is calculated according to whether the termination of the call 
is intrastate, interstate or international. This tariff contains rates for intrastate calls 
only. 
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SECTION 3.0 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES, (CONT'D.) 

3.2 Timing of Calls 

Timing for all calls begins when the called party answers the call (i.e. when two way 
communications are established.) Answer detection is based on standard industry 
answer detection methods, including hardware and software answer detection. 

Chargeable time for all calls ends when either one ofthe parties disconnects fiomthe 
call. 

The minimum call duration and additional billing increments are specified on a per 
product basis in this section of the tariff. 

The Company will not bill for incomplete calls. 

3.3 Special Access Channels 

Special access channels (i.e. : dedicated facilities), if utilized, are provided and billed to the 
Customer by the local exchange telephone company. Charges for the special access channel 
are determined by the local access provider and the Customer is responsible for payment of 
these charges to the local exchange telephone company. The Company will, at the 
Customer's request, act on behalf of the Customer in the ordering and installation of the 
special access channel with the access provider. The Company may also request the access 
provider to bill them for the account, in the name of the Customer. If this option is utilized, 
the Company will pass the charges, including a billing service fee, through to the Customer. 

3.4 Quality and Grade of Service Offered 

Minimum Call Completion Rate - Customers can expect a call completion rate of not less 
than 90% during peak use periods. The call completion rate is calculated as the number of 
calls completed (including calls completed to a busy line or to a line which remains 
unanswered by the called party) divided by the number of calls attempted. 
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SECTION 3.0 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES, (CONT'D.) 

3.5 Service Offerings 

3.5.1 Switched Long Distance Service 

Switched Long Distance Service is a usage based direct dialed interexchange service, which 
utilizes switched access facilities, fiom equal access locations, on the originating end of each 
call. Calls are billed in a maximum of sixty-second increments. All charges are billed 
monthly in arrears. 

3.5.2 Switched Toll-Free Service 

Switched Toll-Free Service provides Toll-Free calls to terminating points throughout the 
state of SouthDakota, which utilizes switched access facilities, fiom equal access locations, 
on the terminating end of each call. Charges for the Toll-Free calls are billed to the 
Company's customers rather than the caller. Calls are billed in a maximum of sixty-second 
increments with initial call duration of sixty-seconds. All charges are billed monthly in 
arrears. 

3.5.3 Dedicated Long Distance Service 

Dedicated Long Distance Service is a flat rate direct dialed interexchange service, which 
utilizes dedicated access facilities on the originating end of each call. Calls are billed in six 
(6) second increments with initial call duration of six (6) seconds. All charges are billed 
monthly in arrears. 

3.5.4 Dedicated Toll Free Service 

Dedicated Toll Free Service provides inbound '8OOI88 8' calling to points terminating within 
the State of SouthDakotautilizing dedicated access facilities onthe terminating end of each 
call. Charges for the '8001888' calls are billed to the Company's Customers rather than to the 
originating caller. Calls are billed in six (6) second increments with initial call duration of 
eighteen (1 8) seconds. All charges are billed monthly in arrears. 

3.5.5 Calling Card 

Calls are billed in sixty-second increments. All calls are billed in arrears. 
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SECTION 3.0 - DESCR1[BTIBN OF SERVICE AND U T E S ,  (CONT'D.) 

3.6 Rates and Charges 

3.6.6. Switched Long Distance Service 

Initial and Each Additional Minute: 0.2472 

3.6.2 Switched Toll-Free Service 

Initial and Each Additional Minute: 0.2472 

3.6.3 Dedicated Long Distance Service 

Initial and Each Additional Minute: 0.1544 

3.6.4 Dedicated Toll Free Service 

Initial and Each Additional Minute: 0.1741 

3.6.5 Calling Card 

Initial and Each Additional Minute: 0.1490 
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SECTION 3.0 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES, (CONT'D.) 

3.7 Public Telephone Surcharge 

In order to recover the Company's expenses to comply with the FCC's pay telephone 
compensation plan effective on October 7,1997 (FCC 97-371), anundiscountable per call 
charge is applicable to all interstate, intrastate and international calls that originate fiom any 
domestic pay telephone used to access the Company's services. This surcharge, which is in 
addition to standard tariffed usage charges and any applicable service charges and surcharges 
associated with the Company's service, applies for the use of the instrument used to access 
the Company service and is unrelated to the Company's service accessed fiom the pay 
telephone. 

Pay telephones include coin-operated and coinless phones owned by local telephone 
companies, independent companies and other interexchange carriers. The Public Pay 
Telephone Surcharge applies to the initial completed call and any reoriginated call (i.e., 
using the "#" symbol). 

Whenever possible, the Public Pay Telephone Surcharge will appear on the same invoice 
containing the usage charges for the surcharged call. In cases where proper pay telephone 
coding digits are not transmitted to the Company prior to completion of a call, the Public Pay 
Telephone Surcharge may be billed on a subsequent invoice after the Company has obtained 
information fiom a carrier that the originating station is an eligible pay telephone. 

The Public Pay Telephone Surcharge does not apply to calls placed fiom pay telephones at 
which the Customer pays for service by inserting coins during the progress of the call. 

3.7.1 Public Telephone Surcharge 

Rate per Call $0.50 
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SECTION 4.0 - MISCELLANEOUS 

General 

Each Customer is charged individually for each call placed through the Company. Charges 
will vary by service offering, class of call, time of day, day of week, class of call and/or call 
duration.' 

Late Payment Charge 

The company will charge a one-time 1.5% late payment fee on all invoices not paid by the 
due date identified on the Company bill. 

Return Check Charge 

The Company will assess a return check charge of up to $20.00 whenever a check or draft 
presented for payment of service is not accepted by the institution on which it is written. This 
charge applies each time a check is returned to the Company by a bank for insufficient funds. 

SECTION 5.0 - PROMOTIONS 

Promotions - General 

From time to time the Company shall, at its option, promote subscription or stimulate 
network usage by offering to waive some of all of the nonrecurritlg or recurring charges for 
the Customer (if eligible) oftarget services for a limited duration, not to exceed 90 days, or 
by offering premiums or refunds of equivalent value. Such promotions shall be made 
available to all similarly situated Customers in the target market area. All promotions will be 
fded with and approved by the Commission prior to offering them to Customers. 

Demonstration of Calk 

From time to time the Company shall demonstrate service by providing fiee test calls of up 
to four minutes duration over its network. 
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SECTION 6.0 - CONTRACT SERVICES 

6.1 General 

At the option ofthe Company, service may be offered on a contract basis to meet specialized 
requirements of the Customer not contemplated in this tariff. The terms of each contract 
shall be mutually agreed upon between the Customer and Company and may include 
discounts off ofrates contained herein, waiver of recurring or nonrecurring charges, charges 
for specially designed and constructed services not contained in the Company's general 
service offerings, or other customized features. The terms of the contract may be based 
partially or completely on the term and volume commitment, type of originating or 
terminating access, mixture of services or other distinguishing features. Service shall be 
available to all similarly situated Customers for six months after the initial offering to the 
first contract Customer for any given set of terms. 

Each contract will be filed with the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission. 
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South Dakota Public Utilities Commission 

WEEKLY FILINGS 
For the Period of September 19,2002 through September 25,2002 

If you need a complete copy of a filing faxed, overnight expressed, or mailed to you, please contact Delaine Kolbo 
within five business days of this report. Phone: 605-773-3705 Fax: 605-773-3809 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS 

TC02-160 In the Matter of the Application of All-star Acquisition Corporation for a Certificate of 
Authority to Provide Interexchange Telecommunications Services in South Dakota. 

All-star Acquisition Corporation has filed an application for a Certificate of Authority to provide interexchange 
telecommunications services in South Dakota. The applicant intends to provide resold intrastate 
telecommunications services, including MTS, in-WATS, out-WATS, and Calling Card services throughout 
South Dakota. 

Staff Analyst: Michele Farris 
Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 0911 9/02 
lntervention Deadline: 1011 1/02 

TC02-I 61 In the Matter of the Filing for Approval of an Amendment to an lnterconnection 
Agreement between Qwest Corporation and McLeodUSA Telecommunications Services, 
Inc. 

On September 20, 2002, the Commission received for approval a Filing of Amendment to the~lnterconnection 
Agreement between McLeodUSA Telecommunications Services, Inc. (McLeodUSA) and Qwest Corporation 
(Qwest) f/k/a U S WEST Communications, Inc. According to the parties, this is an Amendment to the 
negotiated lnterconnection Agreement which was approved by the Commission effective July 23, 1999, in 
Docket No. TC99-057. The filing is intended to amend the Amendment approved on or about January 24, 
2001, by adding language to the end of section 1 .I I and by replacing the platform recurring rates column with 
the chart which was attached to the filing. Any party wishing to comment on the agreement may do so by filing 
written comments with the Commission and the parties to the agreement no later than October 10, 2002. 
Parties to the agreement may file written responses to the comments no later than twenty days after the service 
of the initial comments. 

Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 09/20/02 
Initial Comments Due: 1011 0102 

TC02-I62 In the Matter of the Filing by Qwest Corporation for Approval of Revisions to its Access 
Services Tariff. 

On September 23, 2002, Qwest Corporation filed revised pages from its Access Services Tariff. The revisions 
introduce Managed Long Distance Service (MLD) for interexchange carriers. MLD is a wholesale platform 
service offered by Qwest to lXCs to monitor and control long distance spending of end-users. Qwest requests 
an effective date of October 14, 2002. 

Staff Analyst: Heather Forney 
Staff Attorney: Karen Cremer 
Date Docketed: 09/23/02 
Intervention Deadline: 1011 1 102 



TC02-163 In the Matter of the Application of Buyers United Inc. for a Certificate :of Authority to 
Provide lnterexchange Telecommunications Services in South Dakota. 

Buyers United Inc. has filed an application for a Certificate of Authority to provide interexchange 
telecommunications services in South Dakota. The applicant will provide service under Buyers United Inc., 
Buyersonline, and United Carrier Networks. The applicant intends to resell intrastate long distance and 
provide in a limited capacity, internet services throughout South Dakota. 

Staff Analyst: Michele Farris 
Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 09/23/02 
lntervention Deadline: I011 1/02 

TCO2-164 In the Matter of the Application of NobelTel, LLC for a Certificate of Authority to Provide 
lnterexchange Telecommunications Services in South Dakota. 

NobelTel LLC is seeking a Certificate of Authority to provide interexchange telecommunications services in 
South Dakota. The Applicant intends to offer a full range of interexchange services on a resale basis. 
Services include direct and dial-around outbound dialing, toll free inbound dialing, directory assistance, data 
services, travel card services and prepaid calling card services. 

Staff Analyst: Keith Senger 
Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 09/24/02 
lntervention Deadline: -I 0/ j  1/02 

TC02-I65 In the Matter of the Filing for Approval of Amendments to lnterconnection Agreements 
between Qwest Corporation and Covad Communications Company and Qwest 
Corporation and McLeodUSA Telecommunications Services, Inc. 

On September 25, 2002, the Commission received a Petition for Approval of Amendments to lnterconnection 
Agreements regarding the following Agreements: 1) U S WEST Service Level Agreement with Covad 
Communications Co. dated April 19, 2000; 2) Confidential Billing Settlement Agreement Between U S WEST 
and McLeodUSA dated April 28, 2000; 3) Confidential Settlement Agreement Between U S WEST and 
McLeodUSA dated May I ,  2000; and 4) Confidential Agreement Between McLeodUSA and Qwest dated 
October 26, 2000. According to Qwest, the company is petitioning the Commission to approve the attached 
agreements such that, to the extent any active provisions of such agreements relate to Section 25-l (b) or (c), 
they are formally available to other CLECs under Section 252(i) of the I996 Telecommunications Act. Qwest 
reserved the right to demonstrate that one or more of these agreements need not have been filed in the event 
of an enforcement action in this area. Any party wishing to comment on the agreement may do so by filing 
written comments with the Commission and the parties to the agreement no later than October 15, 2002. 
Parties to the agreement may file written responses to the comments no later than twenty days after the service 
of the initial comments. 

Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 09/25/02 
Initial Comments Due: I011 5/02 
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 
OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA 

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF ) ORDER GRANTING 
BUYERS UNITED, INC. D/B/A BUYERSONLINE ) CERTIFICATE OF 
AND D/B/A UNITED CARRIER NETWORKS ) AUTHORITY 
FOR A CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY TO ) 
P R O V I D E  I N T E R E X C H A N G E  ) TC02-I 63 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES IN ) 
SOUTH DAKOTA 1 

On September 23, 2002, the Public Utilities Commission (Commission), in 
accordance with SDCL 49-31-3 and ARSD 20:10:24:02, received an application for a 
certificate of authority from Buyers United, Inc. d/b/a Buyersonline and d/b/a United 
Carrier Networks (Buyers United). 

Buyers United intends to resell intrastate long distance and provide in a limited 
capacity, internet services throughout South Dakota. A proposed tariff was filed by Buyers 
United. The Commission has classified long distance service as fully competitive. 

On September 26, 2002, the Commission electronically transmitted notice of the 
filing and the intervention deadline of October 11, 2002, to interested individuals and 
entities. No petitions to intervene or comments were filed and at its November 20, 2002, 
meeting, the Commission considered Buyers United's request for a certificate of authority. 
Commission Staff recommended granting a certificate of authority, subject to the condition 
that Buyers United not offer a prepaid calling card or require or accept deposits or advance 
payments without prior approval of the Commission. 

The Commission finds that it has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to SDCL 
Chapter 49-31, specifically 49-31-3 and ARSD 20:10:24:02 and 20:10:24:03. The 
Commission finds that Buyers United has met the legal requirements established for the 
granting of a certificate of authority. Buyers United has, in accordance with SDCL 49-31 -3, 
demonstrated sufficient technical, financial and managerial capabilities to offer 
telecommunications services in South Dakota. The Commission approves Buyers United's 
application for a certificate of authority, subject to the condition that Buyers United not offer 
a prepaid calling card or require or accept deposits or advance payments without prior 
approval of the Commission. As the Commission's final decision in this matter, it is 
therefore 

ORDERED, that Buyers United's application for a certificate of authority to provide 
interexchange telecommunications services is hereby granted, effective November 22, 
2002, subject to the condition that Buyers United not offer a prepaid calling card or require 
or accept deposits or advance payments without prior approval of the Commission. It is 



FURTHER ORDERED, that Buyers United shall file informational copies of tariff 
changes with the Commission as the changes occur. 

Dated at Pierre, South Dakota, this day of December, 2002. 

II CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned hereby certifies that this 
document has been served today upon all parties of 
record in this docket, as listed on the docket service 
list, by first class mail, in properly addressed 

11 envelopes, Nth charges prepaid thereon. 

Date: , / . 5 / 3 / ~ 2  

(OFFICIAL SEAL) 

BY ORDER OF THE COMMISSION: 

~m NELSON, Commissioner 

I ,  - 
ROBERT K. SAHR, Commissioner 



SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES 
COMMISSION 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY 

To Conduct Business As A Telecommunications Company 
Within The State of South Dakota 

Authority was Granted effective November 22, 2002 
Docket No. TC02-'l63 

This is to certify that 

BUYERS UNITED, INC. D/B/A BUYERSONLINE AND D/B/A 
UNITED CARRIER NETWORKS 

is authorized to provide interexchange telecommunications services in 
South Dakota, subject to the condition that it not offer a prepaid calling 
card or require or accept deposits or advance payments without prior 

approval of the Commission. 

This certificate is issued in accordance with SDCL 49-31-3 and ARSD 
20:10:24:02, and is subject to all of the conditions and limitations contained in the 
rules and statutes governing its conduct of offering telecommunications services. 

(7 
d Dated at Pierre, South Dakota, this 2 day of December, 2002. 


